Oadby and Wigston Borough Council

TO COUNCILLOR:

G S Atwal D M Carter J Kaufman
L A Bentley (Chair) B Dave Dr T K Khong
G A Boulter R Fahey Mrs H E Loydall
Mrs L M Broadley (Vice-Chair) D A Gamble R E R Morris
F S Broadley Mrs S Z Haq

Dear Councillor et al

| hereby summon you to attend a meeting of the DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE to be held
at the COUNCIL OFFICES, STATION ROAD, WIGSTON on THURSDAY, 28 JULY 2016 at 7.00 PM
for the transaction of the business set out in the Agenda below.

Yours faithfully

Council Offices i
Wigston
20 July 2016

Mark Hall
Chief Executive

AGENDA PAGE NO’S

1.  Apologies for Absence
2.  Appointment of Substitutes

To appoint substitute Members in accordance with Rule 4 of Part 4 of the
Constitution.

3. Declarations of Interest

Members are reminded that any declaration of interest should be made having
regard to the Members’ Code of Conduct. In particular, Members must make
clear the nature of the interest and whether it is 'pecuniary' or ‘non-pecuniary'.

4. Minutes of the Previous Meeting held on 12 May 2016 1-12

To read, confirm and sign the minutes of the previous meeting in accordance
with Rule 17 of Part 4 of the Constitution.

5. Petitions and Deputations

To receive any Petitions and, or, Deputations in accordance with Rule 24 of
Part 4 of the Constitution.

6. Review of Scale of Fees and Charges (Building Control) 13-23



Confirmation of The Borough Council of Oadby & Wigston Tree
Preservation Order(s) 2016

a) Land at 18 Newgate End, Wigston, Leicestershire, LE18 2GG

b) Land at Grand Hotel, Canal Street, South Wigston, Leicestershire,
LE18 4PP

c¢) Land at Rear of Saffron Road, South Wigston, Leicestershire, LE18
4UN

Report of the Planning Control Manager
Borough Tour (Verbal Update)

24 -29
30 - 38

39-45

46 - 91



Agenda ltem 4

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE HELD AT THE
COUNCIL OFFICES, STATION ROAD, WIGSTON ON THURSDAY, 12 MAY 2016
COMMENCING AT 7.00 PM

IN ATTENDANCE:

Chair - Councillor L A Bentley
Vice-Chair - Councillor Mrs L M Broadley

COUNCILLORS (12):

G S Atwal B Dave Mrs S Z Haq
G A Boulter R F Eaton J Kaufman
F S Broadley R Fahey Dr T K Khong
D M Carter D A Gamble R E R Morris

OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE (5):
S J Ball J Carr

T Boswell D Gill A Thorpe
OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE (4):
Councillor Ms A R Bond M Crew
Miss S Gutteridge F Robson
Min Narrative Officer
Ref. Resp.

64. | APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

An apology for absence was received from Councillors T Barr and Mrs H E
Loydall.

65. | APPOINTMENT OF SUBSTITUTES

Councillor B Fahey substituted for Councillor T Barr.

66. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

In respect of planning application number 16/00025/FUL.:

(i) The Chair, Councillor L A Bentley, declared a non-pecuniary interest
insofar as he was a Governor and the Chair of the Resources
Committee at the Birkett House School, Wigston. The Member stated
that he would leave the Chamber during consideration of the
application by the Committee;

(ii) Councillor G A Boulter declared a non-pecuniary interest insofar as he
was a Consultee to the application. The Member stated that he would
leave the Chamber during consideration of the application by the
Committee; and

(iii) Councillors J Kaufman and D A Gamble declared a non-pecuniary
interest insofar as they had spoken to a Planning Officer at
Leicestershire County Council about the application.

In respect planning application number 16/00089/LDO:

Page 1



(i) Councillor D M Carter declared a non-pecuniary interest insofar as
number of residents of the Oadby St Peters ward had made
representations to him. He stated that he did not express a view to
upon the same.

(ii) Councillor G A Boulter declared a non-pecuniary interest insofar as he
was a parishioner of a Methodist Church located elsewhere in the
Borough.

All Members confirmed that they attended the meeting without prejudice and
with an open mind.

67.

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 14 APRIL 2016

RESOLVED THAT:

The minutes of the previous meeting of the Committee held on 14 April 2016
be taken as read, confirmed and signed.

68.

PETITIONS AND DEPUTATIONS

One petition was received by the Committee objecting to the Local
Development Order at Brooksby Square, Oadby (16/00089/LDO) entitled
‘Save our East Street Car Parking Spaces’ as set out at agenda item 5a (at
pages 5 - 9).

68 (A

'SAVE OUR EAST STREET CAR PARKING SPACES' E-PETITION

No local government elector of the Borough who was a signatory thereof
presented nor spoke upon the Petition.

The Chair requested that Members be mindful of the Petition when
considering the relevant application.

69.

CAPITAL ASSET VALUE FOR AMENITY TREES (CAVAT)

The Committee gave consideration to the report (at pages 10 - 11) as
delivered and summarised by the Interim Planning Control Manager which
should be read together with these minutes as a composite document.

The Interim Planning Control Manager emphasised that the CAVAT method
was applied nationally by many local authorities to determine an amenity, as
opposed to a commercial, value of any given tree.

UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED THAT:

The Capital Asset Value for Amenity Trees method be approved for the
future use of Planning and Arboricultural Officers as evidence of a tree’s
assessed amenity value in tree-related disputes and negotiations.

In accordance with Rule 7.3 of Part 4 of the Constitution, the Chair moved
for the order of business to be altered and taken in the order as reflected in
the minutes.

RESOLVED THAT:

Page 2




The order of business be altered, accordingly.

70.

LOCAL DEVELOPMENT ORDERS (LDO'S)

The Planning Policy and Regeneration Manager provided a brief
introduction to Local Development Orders (LDO’s).

He stated that an LDO granted a form of conditional outline planning
permission for types of development which the Council considered to be
suitable on a site. It was said to represent a proactive approach on the part
of the Council to take control over the regeneration of the Borough’s town
centres and secure appropriate development and car parking provision on
key sites.

He reported that the Council had undertaken two rounds of public
consultation between December 2015 and January 2016 which related to
test layouts and design principles and a statutory consultation between
February and March 2016 on the draft LDO’s. It was said this amounted to
much more public consultation than would ordinarily be carried out in
relation to a standard planning application and provided the community with
more of an involvement in deciding what is built on the sites.

He stated that in addition to the LDO’s themselves, Design Guides had been
prepared which set out what is likely to be acceptable on the sites and the
design principles that should inform development proposals. It was said that
these would assist the Council in the consideration of any submitted
proposals for the sites.

70a.

STATION STREET, SOUTH WIGSTON

The Committee gave consideration to the report and appendices (at pages
29 - 72) as delivered and summarised by the Planning Policy and
Regeneration Manager which should be read together with these minutes as
a composite document.

The Planning Policy and Regeneration Manager reported that the LDO for
Station Street, South Wigston permitted use class C3 Dwelling Houses and
within use class D1, Clinics and Health Centres only. It was said that
comments received during the statutory consultation primarily related to the
relationship between the LDO site and neighbouring sites and whether there
was a need for a GP surgery in the area. He stated that the Design Guide
took account of neighbouring sites and the wider context of the area. The
Council’s discussions with the NHS was said to confirm the need to replace
the existing GP surgery with a modern facility.

Councillor G A Boulter advised Members to be mindful about the loss of
decision-making powers of this Committee should any of the three LDO’s
not be approved. In respect of this LDO, he invited future developers to be
aware of the potential for increased traffic flow and, or, congestion along
Station Street and Kirkdale Avenue.

Councillor G S Atwal asked whether the minimum requirement of 10% of the
new homes as may be permitted for affordable housing could be increased

Page 3




to 25%.

The Planning Policy and Regeneration Manager stated that the proposed
10% was in line with the Council’s Core Strategy and calculated upon the
results of a viability study.

The Member enquired as to whether rear-access to the site could be better
achieved via Bennett Way.

The Chair stated that such rear-access had previously been raised by
Members in earlier meetings of this Committee and remained an aspiration
of the Council.

The Chair sought further clarification as to Councillor G A Boulter’s earlier
reference to a loss of Committee decision-making powers.

The Planning Policy and Regeneration Manager advised that should the
Council not be able to demonstrate or deliver on its five-year housing land
supply, the Council may be subject to a legal challenge and, subsequently,
ordered to develop land which it has not previously earmarked nor
considered to be suitable for development.

The Chair moved the recommendation as set out at paragraph 2.1 of the
report.

Councillor R E R Morris seconded the recommendation.
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED THAT:
The Local Development Order for Station Street, South Wigston (as set out

in Appendix 1) be ADOPTED and its related Design Guidance (as set out in
Appendix 2) be APPROVED.

70b.

LONG LANES, WIGSTON

The Committee gave consideration to the report and appendices (at pages
73 - 122) as delivered and summarised by the Planning Policy and
Regeneration Manager which should be read together with these minutes as
a composite document.

The Planning Policy and Regeneration Manager reported that the LDO for
Long Lanes, Wigston permitted use classes A2 Financial and Professional
Services, B1a Business, C3 Dwelling Houses and within use class D2,
Gymnasiums in addition to use classes A1 Shops and A3 Restaurants and
Cafes at ground floor level only. It was said that comments received during
the statutory consultation primarily related to concerns over loss of car
parking spaces, support for two-way traffic at the eastern end of Paddock
Street and support for improving Long Lane throughout the site.

He stated the LDO was clear at paragraph 2.2.12 that there must be no
overall loss of Council-owned car parking spaces and that implementation of
the LDO would not result in fewer spaces. He stated that Condition 4 of the
LDO had been amended to require a strategy for replacement car parking
and a car park management plan to demonstrate how the parking elements
of the development would be managed without impacting upon Council-

Page 4




owned car parking spaces.

Councillor G A Boulter stated that the Long Lanes pathway should not be
diverted given to its historical importance. He further requested that the
Council’s aspiration for two-way traffic at the eastern end of Paddock Street
be realised and that the number of car parking spaces both during and after
any construction period be maintained in order to preserve
customer/traders’ access to town centre amenities, including access to Age
Concern on Paddock Street for those residents of limited mobility.

The Planning Policy and Regeneration Manager advised that that it was a
clear condition of the LDO that submitted proposals must be accompanied
by a strategy for parking provision before the Council would issue a
Certificate of Compliance to ensure no loss of car parking spaces during
and after any construction period.

Councillor B Dave enquired as to the Council’s responsibility in respect of
the management of any strategy for replacement parking provision.

The Planning Policy and Regeneration Manager advised that the onus was
to be assumed by any prospective developer to prepare and demonstrate
the viability of any car park management plan to ensure no loss of car
parking provision. He stated that no strategy could be pre-empted until an
application(s) was submitted.

Councillor G A Boulter enquired as to who the legal proprietor of the site
was and whether any prospective development would be completed in a
single phase.

The Planning Policy and Regeneration Manager advised that the Council
was the legal proprietor of the car park on Paddock Street and that the
remainder of the site was under the mixed ownership of a number of private
individuals and, or, entities.

The Chair stated that phasing of any development could not be commented
upon until such time as a developer submitted an application to develop the
site, or part thereof.

The Member further requested that the archaeology of the site be properly
surveyed before the commencement of any development thereon.

The Planning Policy and Regeneration Manager stated that the appropriate
authorities had been contacted who in turn advised that the site was of no
archaeological significance within the outline of the LDO plan. He assured
the Member that the LDO could be amended to ensure that the necessary
surveys were undertaken prior to development.

The Chair moved the recommendation as set out at paragraph 2.1 of the
report.

Councillor Mrs S Z Haq seconded the recommendation.
RESOLVED THAT:

The Local Development Order for Long Lanes, Wigston (as set out in

Page 5




Appendix 1) be ADOPTED and its related Design Guidance (as set out in
Appendix 2) be APPROVED.

Votes For 10
Votes Against 0
Abstentions 4

70c.

BROOKSBY SQUARE, OADBY

Mr Frazer Robson, a Town Planning Consultant, spoke upon the application
on behalf the Trinity Methodist Church, Oadby and the Oadby Civic Society
as an objector.

Mr Robson stated that the majority of responses received during the
statutory consultation objected to the LDO and that the Committee ought to
give weight to the same. It was said that any loss of car parking spaces at
East Street would adversely affect the viability of local businesses and
community-used facilities and that any replacement parking would not be so
conveniently located. With reference to the Council’s Core Strategy and the
Oadby Town Centre Master Plan Area, he stated that the LDO’s 2026 target
of 81 new homes had already been met within the boundary area by other
schemes and that the Council’s latest Residential Land Availability
Assessment (April 2015) showed that enough land had been identified to
meet its 5-year housing land supply arrangements.

Mr Robson further opined that the site was currently in productive use and
could not be properly considered as brownfield land for development
purposes. It was said that a proposed health centre would place further
demand on car parking spaces on East Street. With reference to paragraph
3.9 of the report, he stated that there was no requirement for the Council to
follow the Planning Inspector’'s recommendation(s). It was also stated that
the LDO and the Design Guidance did not provide robust enough guidance
to allow the Council effective control over any future development, or extent
thereof, and alleged that the procedure by which the LDO sought approval
represented irregular practice.

Miss Samantha Gutteridge, a local business owner, spoke upon the
application on behalf of the Oadby Town Centre Retailers’ Association as an
objector.

Miss Gutteridge stated that any loss of car parking spaces at East Street,
albeit temporary, would adversely affect the viability of local businesses
insofar as it is more easily visible to and accessible by many shoppers
originating from outside the Oadby area than the car park on Sandhurst
Street, Oadby. She opined that the car park surveys conducted in March
2016 did not typically reflect busy trading periods and that a proposed health
centre would require additional car parking provision. She warned that any
proposed development ought to be mindful about the consequences as to
increased traffic flow to the surrounding site areas.

Councillor Ms A R Bond, elected-Member for the Oadby St Peters ward,
spoke upon the application.

The Member stated that the cark park on East Street was ideally-situated to
attract passing trade from the A6 and that any proposed development on the

Page 6




site would obscure the car park’s high visibility, result in a further loss of
trees and green-areas and cause traffic congestion along The Parade,
Oadby. The Member invited the Committee to refuse the LDO citing the
1000+ objections lodged by local residents.

The Committee gave consideration to the report and appendices (at pages
123 - 180) as delivered and summarised by the Planning Policy and
Regeneration Manager which should be read together with these minutes as
a composite document.

The Planning Policy and Regeneration Manager reported that the LDO for
Brooksby Square, Oadby permitted use class C3 Dwelling Houses and
within use class D1, Clinics and Health Centres only. It was said that
comments received during the statutory consultation primarily related to car
parking, opposition to the provision of a health centre and housing on the
site and suggestions that the Council had already met its housing target in
the town centre. It was said that there was also support for improving the
appearance of the car park, the redevelopment of a brownfield site and the
provision of affordable and appropriate housing for young people in Oadby.

He stated the LDO was clear at paragraph 2.2.14 that there must be no
overall loss of Council-owned car parking spaces and that the
implementation of the LDO would not result in fewer spaces. It was said that
Oadby was a compact centre and that both of the Council-owned car parks
were conveniently located in order to support all town centre retailers and
uses (as illustrated in Appendix 5 at page 180). He stated that need for
additional car parking spaces was not bourne out by the Council’s car
parking counts undertaken in March 2016 and that the provision of
additional car parking spaces is unrelated to the LDO. He stated that
Condition 4 of the LDO had been similarly amended as per the LDO at Long
Lanes, Wigston.

He reported that the Council had not met its housing target in the town
centre. He stated that Figure 3 of the Core Strategy referred to housing
opportunities within the town centre master plan area and sought the
provision of 81 dwellings. The Town Centre Boundary defined in Policy 5 of
the Town Centres Area Action Plan was said to be consistent with and
based upon the town centre master plan area to which Area Action Plan
Policy 18 related. He reported that presently 36 dwellings were completed or
committed within the town centre boundary and that the housing
requirement was expressed as a minimum and the delivery of new homes
was a core planning principle of the National Planning Policy Framework. It
was stated that the Council had an agreed strategy to focus as much new
housing in the town centres and urban areas as possible in order to protect
greenfield land.

The Chair enquired as to whether the LDO set the principle for development
on the site.

The Planning Policy and Regeneration Manager advised that the site had
already been allocated for development in the Town Centres Area Action
Plan which was adopted in 2013 and that a developer could apply for
planning permission to develop the site at any time regardless of whether or
not a LDO was in place.

Page 7




The Chair enquired as to whether the LDO would result in any loss of
Council-owned public car parking spaces.

The Planning Policy and Regeneration Manager reiterated that the LDO
stated that there must be no overall loss of Council-owned car parking
spaces available to the public in the town centre. It was said that it was a
condition that submitted proposals must be accompanied by a strategy for
replacement parking provision that sets out how this was to be achieved. He
added that if the Council was not content with the submitted strategy for
replacement parking provision, or if a submitted proposal were to result in
an overall loss of Council-owned car parking spaces within the town centre,
then the Council would not issue a Certificate of Compliance and
development would not be able to take place. It was further said that it was
also a condition that submitted proposals must be accompanied by a car
park management plan that would demonstrate how the parking elements of
the development will be managed to ensure that appropriate arrangements
were in place to provide a sufficient number of car parking spaces related to
the development itself.

Councillor D M Carter stated that there was an overwhelming consensus
amongst Oadby residents that the proposed LDO could not maintain and,
or, enhance the viability and vitality of Oadby town centre primarily because
of the belief as to a loss of car parking provision at East Street. The Member
further enquired as: to how many residential units were anticipated to be
delivered; how many months land supply this represented and; whether 90
of the Council-owned car-parking spaces sited within the LDO boundary
would be lost during any construction period.

The Planning Policy and Regeneration Manager advised that 100 residential
units were required per annum equating to a land supply of 3.5 months. He
further advised that any loss would be mitigated by the submission of a
strategy for replacement parking provision by the developer and that the
replacement spaces would have to be found within the town centre
boundary.

The Member enquired as to whether a prospective developer could
challenge the decision to not issue a Certificate of Compliance.

Ms Mary Crew, a Town Planning Consultant at Peter Brett Associated LLP,
advised that no legal challenge had hitherto been brought against a local
authority in this respect and therefore the matter was untested.

Mr David Gill, the Committee’s Legal Advisor, advised that a challenge may
be sought via judicial view on the basis of Wednesbury unreasonableness:
however the prospect of a successful challenge was said to be negligible.
He reiterated that as the site had already been allocated for development, a
developer could still apply for planning permission subject to ordinary
planning procedure. He further noted that the Council’s five-year housing
supply was a variable aspect which required careful monitoring over time to
ensure its continued viability.

Councillor J Kaufman echoed the concerns raised by Councillor D M Carter
and invited work to be undertaken with all stakeholders to find a common
solution. He stated that he was hopeful that Sandhurst Street would be
incorporated into any future revision of the LDO to alleviate the pressure on

Page 8




East Street.

The Planning Policy and Regeneration Manager advised that approval of
the recommendation would put the Council in the best possible position to
take control of development in the Borough in the future. He emphasised
that Members had previously agreed the strategy set out in the adopted
Core Strategy to focus development in the town centres and urban areas.
Accordingly, it was said that the Council had adopted a Town Centres Area
Action Plan which allocated suitable sites for development, including the site
to which this LDO related and the site at Sandhurst Street. The purpose of
the LDO was said to assist in bringing forward development on the allocated
site by providing certainty to a prospective developer.

Councillor J Kaufman moved for the Local Development Order at Brooksby
Square, Oadby and its related Design Guidance to be refused.

Councillor D A Gamble seconded Councillor J Kaufman’s motion.

Councillors Mrs S Z Haq, G S Atwal and B Dave further stated they were not
in support of the LDO for the same reasons aforementioned.

Councillor G A Boulter warned the Committee that, should Members be
minded to refuse the LDO, development may be potentially forthcoming on
greenfield sites in Oadby: however, he noted the importance of the view(s)
expressed by the residents of Oadby.

RESOLVED THAT:
The Local Development Order at Brooksby Square, Oadby (as set out in

Appendix 1) and its related Design Guidance (as set out in Appendix 2) be
REFUSED.

Votes For 10
Votes Against 3
Abstentions 1

Councillor D A Gamble left the Chamber at 8:44 pm.

71.

REPORT OF THE PLANNING CONTROL MANAGER

The Committee gave consideration to the report (at pages 12 - 28) as
delivered and summarised by the Interim Planning Control Manager,
together with the supplementary agenda update (at pages 1 - 3) as tabled at
the meeting, which should be read together with these minutes as a
composite document.

1. Application No. 16/00025/FUL - Abingdon House, 85 Station Road,
Wigston, Leicestershire, LE18 2DP

Councillor L A Bentley spoke upon the application.

The Member said that existing building housing the Birkett House School
was in a state of considerable disrepair and that the proposed development,
if permitted, would provide a range of improved facilities to the benefit of
school community and the wider Little Hill Estate in Wigston. He noted that

Page 9




the anticipated loss of trees from the site was mitigated by the application’s
commendable landscaping that would otherwise provide pupils with a
heightened sensory experience. He stated that the prospect of increased
traffic to and from the site would not have a comparatively discernible
impact and that the new site accommodated more off-street parking. He
praised the work undertaken by the staff and governors at the schools in
providing an excellent learning environment for its special educational needs
students.

Councillor L A Bentley left the Chamber at 8:55 pm.
Councillor G A Boulter spoke upon the application.

The Member expressed his disappointment about the school’s lack of
respite care provision which was concern to be addressed by Leicestershire
County Council. He raised a concern as to the felling of a number of trees
on site before the submission of the application and was hopeful that this
application would provide the opportunity for replacement planting. He
further suggested that boundary treatment should be applied to site’s
perimeter security fencing in the interim period whilst foliage grows. A
concern was also raised as to the potential access implications on the roads
junctures adjoining the site. He stated that he was in support of application
provided that the correct decisions were taken to maintain the visual
amenity of the surrounding area.

Councillor G A Boulter left the Chamber at 9:01 pm.

The Interim Planning Control Manager summarised the planning
application’s site and location, relevant planning history, consultations,
representations and planning considerations, identifying the relevant
planning policies as detailed in the report (at pages 18 - 23). He
summarised the report’s conclusion (at page 23), stating that the application
was recommended for approval subject to the prescribed conditions.

The Interim Planning Control Manager reported that the application had
attracted widespread support and commended the high-quality of
architecture and landscaping. He further added the Consultee, Sport
England, had conditionally withdrawn their objection to the application
subject to undertaking of agreement pursuant to the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990, section 106 (“section 106 Agreement”) as set out in the
supplementary agenda update (at page 2) to be finalised.

The Vice-Chair, Councillor Mrs L M Broadley, enquired as to possibility of
detailing to the perimeter security fence and whether a planning condition
could be inserted for replacement planting of trees.

The Interim Planning Control Manager advised that details regarding the
detailing regarding the fencing would be received in accordance with the
planning condition. He stated that a condition regarding replacement
planting may present difficulties as the trees previously felled were located
beyond the application site.

Councillors Mrs S Z Haq and J Kaufman commended the application for
approval.

Page 10




Councillor R E R Morris enquired as to what part of the former Guxlaxton
College was to be demolished to accommodate the application.

The Interim Planning Control Manager stated that delegated planning
permission was granted for the removal of a single-storey block and tennis
courts on site as an enabling measure.

The Vice-Chair moved the recommendation for approval of planning
permission subject to the satisfactory completion of the section 106
Agreement and moved that delegated authority to be granted to the
Planning Officer to determine financial contribution payable under the said
Agreement.

Councillor J Kaufman seconded the recommendation and motion.
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED THAT:

(i) The application be PERMITTED planning permission subject to the
satisfactory completion the section 106 Agreement; and

(ii) That delegated authority be granted to Planning Officers to determine
financial contribution payable under the section 106 Agreement.

Councillors L A Bentley and G A Boulter returned to the Chamber at 9:15
pm.

2. Application No. 16/00022/TPO - 16 Knighton Rise, Oadby, Leicester,
LE2 2RE

The Interim Planning Control Manager summarised the planning
application’s site and location, relevant planning history, consultations,
representations and planning considerations, identifying the relevant
planning policies as detailed in the report (at pages 13 - 17). He
summarised the report’s conclusion (at page 17 of the agenda and page 1
of supplementary agenda update) stating that the application was again
recommended for refusal of consent to remove the tree, having been
previously deferred from the previous meeting of the Committee held on 14
April 2016.

The Interim Planning Control Manager further advised that if Members were
minded to refuse consent, the extent of any financial liability was limited to
the net additional loss or damage within a proceeding 12-month period.

The Chair stated that he was not convinced by the further evidence, or lack
thereof, provided by applicant’s engineers that the tree in question was main
attributable cause of movement of, and subsequent damage to, the building.

The Chair moved the recommendation for the refusal of consent to remove
the tree.

Councillor J Kaufman seconded the recommendation.
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED THAT:

That application be REFUSED for consent to remove the tree.

Page 11




72.

LDO FEES

The Committee gave consideration to the report (at pages 181 - 183) as
delivered and summarised by the Planning Policy and Regeneration
Manager which should be read together with these minutes as a composite
document.

The Chair moved the recommendations as set out at paragraph 2.1 of the
report.

The Vice-Chair seconded the recommendations.
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED THAT:
(i) The principle of charging fees for LDO’s be approved;
(ii) The scale of charges be approved and set at:
(@) 100% of the appropriate pre-application charge as per the
Council’s existing scale of charges; and

(b) 50% of the relevant full planning application fee as per the
Council’s existing scale of charges for a Certificate of Compliance.

THE MEETING CLOSED AT 9.21 PM

Y 1

CHAIR

THURSDAY, 28 JULY 2016

Page 12




Agenda Item 6

Development Control Thursday, 28 July

Committee 2016 Matter for Information

Title: Review of Scale of Fees and Charges (Building Control)
Author: Tony Boswell (Interim Planning Control Manager)

’ Sarah Pearce (Building Control Surveyor)
1. Introduction

2.1.

2.2.
2.3.

3.1.

3.2.

Members will be aware that the Council operate a full Building Control regulation
service. Although the service undertake a number of “non-earning” services and
activities, its financial objective is to break even over any short period of years. l.e., it
is not a profit or surplus generating service. In recent years, partly as a result of
commercial competition and the recent downturn in local building activity, the service
has been run at a consistent “loss”. This has hampered both the level and quality of
service that can be sustained over time.

The current scheme of fees and charges has not been reviewed since January 2011.
In recent years there also appears to have been some reticence about increasing the
Council’s current scale of charges, for fear of becoming uncompetitive with locally
operating commercial “A I”s and, due to fear of becoming significantly uncompetitive
with nearby or comparable local authorities.

In maintaining and reforming the current very high level of service, the commitment
and dedication of the Council’s current Building Control Surveyor should also be
recognised.

Recommendations

That the appended Revised Scale of Fees and Charges be approved as an
amendment to those previously operated (also appended).

That those revised fees and charges be operated with immediate effect.

That relevant officers continue their efforts to achieve an equitable “cost-recovery”
when charging or re-charging each case.

Information

In a recent Internal Audit of the Council’s Building Control Service, two key
recommendations were made by auditors:

“Management should review the basis for calculating and allocating costs within the
various Building Control budgets to ensure these accurately reflect the service and its
chargeable and non-chargeable work”.

and
“The Scheme of Charges should be reviewed to ensure it accurately reflects the
service and ensures charges fully recover (as far as practical) the chargeable costs of

the service and are at an optimal, but competitive, level”.

The extent of work engaged by each type of application and the amount of staff time
spent in each “typical” fee earning case has now been re-examined and

Page 13



reapportioned. Furthermore, the equivalent fee or charge made by each other local
authority in Leicestershire has been established to act as a benchmark for OWBC'’s
proposed scale of charges.

3.3. If the appended scale of fees and charges were adopted then OWBC would remain at
or about the cheapest local authority Building Control service within Leicestershire. (To
some extent this reflects the compact size of Oadby and Wigston and so the modest
amount of time spent travelling from job to job).

3.4. Building Control officers are often required to allocate additional time to a Building
Notice and Regularisation application as OWBC rarely receive any details of the
project and are often expected to project manage the work on site. Therefore an
increase of 17% to bring the charges in line with the neighbouring authorities plus an
additional 10% to recover the cost of time spent on site etc.

4. Predicted Income Based on the Proposed Fee Increase

2015/2016 Increase (%) 2016/2017 Building Regs
Approximate Estimated Application
£13,227. 17% £15,475 Plan charge
£25,836. 17% £30,228 Inspection fee
£26,455. 27% £33,598 Building Notice
£1,652. 27% £2,098 Regularisation
£67,170. - £81,399 Total

5. Conclusion
Therefore, a potential increase of income in the order of £14,229. This assumes that
the current year is a close repletion of the last financial year — and will make good
modest losses from the last two years.

Background Documents:-
Internal Audit Annual Report 2015/16
Policy, Finance and Development Committee on Tuesday 19 July 2016
Email: tony.boswell@oady-wigston.gov.uk Tel: (0116) 257 2710
Implications

Financial (CR)

It is important that the Council maximises all its income streams,
particularly in the current funding climate.

Legal (AC) No significant implications.

Risk (TB) No significant implications.

Equalities (TB) | Equality Assessment:-

No significant implications.

[ ] Initial Screening [] Full Assessment [X] Not Applicable

Page 14



GT abed

Table A

(maximum floor area of 300m2 and up to 3 storey only)

Standard Charges for the Creation of, or Conversion to, New Housing

Plan Charge Inspection Charge Building Notice Charge Regularisation
Number of £ £ £ Charge
dwellings £
Net Charge (Exc. | Total Charge Net Charge Total Charge Net Charge Total Charge Total Charge
VAT) (Inc. VAT) (Exc. VAT) (Inc. VAT) (Exc. VAT) (Inc. VAT) (VAT Exempt)
One new £225.00 £270.00 £430.00 £516.00 720.00 £865.00 £865.00
dwelling
Each additional 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50%
dwelling of the same
type is discounted
More than one Individually Individually Individually Individually Individually Individually Individually
dwelling and Determined Determined Determined Determined Determined Determined Determined
conversions

Note:

For individually determined charges, please provide a copy of the proposed plans and a quote will be calculated.

For electrical work not covered under a Competent Persons Scheme (Part P registered) the basic charge per dwelling will be £253.29 plus VAT
(account will be given to repetitive work and a discount may be applied). This charge is additional to the inspection charge, building notice charge or
regularisation charge.

Unless agreed otherwise schemes exceeding one year in duration may be subject to additional charges.




9T abied

Table B

Standard Charges for Extensions and Other Work to a Single Domestic Building

Plan Charge Inspection Charge Building Notice Charge Regularisation
Description of Work £ £ £ Charge
Net Charge Total Net Charge Total Net Charge Total Total
(Exc. VAT) Charge (Exc. VAT) Charge (Exc. VAT) Charge Charge
(Inc. VAT) (Inc. VAT) (Inc. VAT) (VAT Exempt)
Garages and Carports
Erection or extension of a
single storey non exempt 122.07 143.43 134.46 158.00 256.53 301.42 384.80
detached garage or carport 143.00 172.00 158.00 189.00 331.00 397.00 397.00
up to 70m?
Erection or extension of a
single storey non exempt 122.07 143.43 134.46 158.00 256.53 301.42 384.80
attached garage or carport 143.00 172.00 158.00 189.00 331.00 397.00 397.00
up to 70m?
Erection or extension of a
detached garage up to 140.85 165.50 184.80 21714 325.65 382.64 488.48
100m? which includes room/s 165.00 198.00 216.00 260.00 419.00 503.00 503.00
for use at first floor level
Garage and or outbuilding
converted into habitable use 93.90 110.33 134.46 158.00 228.36 268.32 342.54
with a maximum floor area of 110.00 132.00 158.00 189.00 294.00 353.00 353.00
36m?
Extensions

Extension of a dwelling the
total floor area of which does 122.07 143.43 159.63 187.57 281.70 286.86 366.21
not exceed 10m? 143.00 172.00 187.00 224.00 363.00 436.00 436.00
Extension of a dwelling the
total floor area of which 140.85 165.50 234.75 275.83 375.60 441.33 563.40
exceeds 10m?, but does not 165.00 198.00 275.00 330.00 484.00 581.00 581.00
exceed 50m?
Extension of a dwelling the
total floor area of which 159.63 187.57 384.99 452.36 544.62 639.29 816.93
exceeds 50m?, but does not 187.00 224.00 451.00 541.00 702.00 842.00 842.00
exceed 100m?




LT abed

Plan Charge

Inspection Charge

Building Notice Charge

Regularisation

Description of Work £ £ £ Charge
£
Net Charge Total Net Charge Total Net Charge Total Total
(Exc. VAT) | Charge (Inc. (Exc. VAT) | Charge (Inc. (Exc. VAT) | Charge (Inc. Charge
VAT) VAT) VAT) (VAT Exempt)
Loft Conversions
8 Loft conversion with a floor
area not exceeding 50m? that 150.24 176.53 209.58 246.26 359.82 422.79 539.73
does not include the 176.00 211.00 246.00 295.00 464.00 557.00 557.00
construction of dormers
9 Loft conversion with a floor
area not exceeding 50m? that 159.63 187.57 234.75 275.83 394.38 463.40 591.57
includes the construction of 176.00 211.00 275.00 330.00 496.00 595.00 595.00
dormers
Replacement Windows / Doors
10 Replacement of windows
and/or doors up to a 18.78 22.07 34.56 40.61 53.34 62.67 80.01
maximum of 5 in external 44.00 53.00 70.00 84.00 125.00 150.00 150.00
walls of a single dwelling
11 Replacement of windows
and/or doors up to a 18.78 22.07 59.34 69.72 78.12 91.79 117.18
maximum of 20 in external 44.00 53.00 99.00 119.00 157.00 189.00 189.00
walls of a single dwelling
Underpinning
12 Traditional underpinning
37.56 44.13 24.79/metre 29.13/metre | 24.79/metre | 29.13/metre 37.19/metre
(34.56 min) (40.61 min) (72.12 min) (84.74 min) (108.18 min)
88.00 106.00 141.00 min 169.00 min 169.00 min
40.00/mrun | 48.00/m run | 40.00/mrun | 48.00/m run 48.00/m run
13 Piling and needles 37.56 4413 122.07 143.43 159.63 187.57 239.45
88.00 106.00 70.00 84.00 173.00 208.00 208.00
Charges for underpinning will
be discounted by the
percentage indicated if 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50%
carried out at the same time
as constructing an extension




Description of Work

Plan Charge

Inspection Charge

£

Building Notice Charge

£

Regularisation
Charge
£

Net Charge
(Exc. VAT)

Total
Charge (Inc.
VAT)

Net Charge
(Exc. VAT)

Total
Charge (Inc.
VAT)

Net Charge
(Exc. VAT)

Total Charge
(Inc. VAT)

Total
Charge
(VAT Exempt)

Other Alterations

14

Renovation of a thermal
element (price is per element, if
more than 1 is carried out at the
same time, each subsequent
element is reduced by 50%)

e.g. plastering, rendering,
replacing roof covering/s where
there is no significant increase
in weight, replacement floor etc
see Approved Document L1B
Appendix A

37.56
66.00

4413
79.00

59.34
70.00

69.72
84.00

96.90
149.00

113.86
179.00

145.35
179.00

8T aled
3

Installation of an ancillary
appliance carried out by a
person registered with an
appropriate competent person’s
scheme

e.g. Solid fuel appliance,
replacement flue liner, unvented
hot water system

No additional
charge

No
additional
charge

No additional
charge

No
additional
charge

No additional
charge

No
additional
charge

No additional
charge

16

Installation of an ancillary
appliance, other than by a
person registered with an
appropriate competent person’s
scheme

e.g. Solid fuel appliance,
replacement flue liner, unvented
hot water system

37.56
66.00

4413
79.00

59.34
70.00

69.72
84.00

96.90
149.00

113.86
179.00

145.35
179.00




Plan Charge Inspection Charge Building Notice Charge Regularisation
Description of Work £ £ £ Charge
£
Net Charge Total Net Charge Total Net Charge | Total Charge Total
(Exc. VAT) | Charge (Inc. (Exc. VAT) | Charge (Inc. (Exc. VAT) (Inc. VAT) Charge
VAT) VAT) (VAT Exempt)
17 | Alterations not described
elsewhere including structural
alterations and installation of
controlled fittings
Estimated cost of work 56.34 66.20 59.34 69.72 115.68 135.92 173.52
£0-£2,000 66.00 79.00 70.00 84.00 149.00 179.00 179.00
25% discount (see note 4.d) 50.00 59.00 52.00 63.00 112.00 134.00 134.00
Estimated cost of work 65.73 77.23 109.68 128.87 175.41 206.11 263.12
£2,001 - £5,000 77.00 92.00 128.00 154.00 226.00 271.00 271.00

& | 25% discount (see note 4.d) 58.00 69.00 96.00 116.00 169.00 203.00 203.00

Q

()

5 | Estimated cost of work 93.90 110.33 134.46 157.99 228.36 268.32 342.54
£5,001 - £10,000 110.00 132.00 158.00 189.00 294.00 353.00 353.00
Estimated cost of work 112.68 132.40 159.63 187.57 272.31 319.96 408.47
£10,001 - £20,000 132.00 158.00 187.00 224.00 351.00 421.00 421.00
Estimated cost of work 140.85 165.50 259.54 304.96 400.39 470.46 600.59
£20,001 - £30,000 165.00 198.00 304.00 365.00 516.00 620.00 620.00
Estimated cost of work 159.63 187.57 384.99 452.36 544.62 639.93 816.93
£30,001 - £50,000 187.00 224.00 451.00 541.00 702.00 842.00 842.00
Estimated cost of work £50,001 Individually Individually Individually Individually Individually Individually Individually
and over determined determined determined determined determined determined determined




0z abed

Plan Charge Inspection Charge Building Notice Charge Regularisation
Description of Work £ £ £ Charge
£
Net Charge Total Net Charge Total Net Charge Total Total
(Exc. VAT) | Charge (Inc. (Exc. VAT) | Charge (Inc. | (Exc. VAT) | Charge (Inc. Charge
VAT) VAT) VAT) (VAT Exempt)
Electrical Work
18 Electrical works carried out by
Part P installer registered with No No No No No No No
a Part P competent person self additional additional additional additional additional additional additional charge
certification scheme in relation charge charge charge charge charge charge
to a new dwelling, extension or
alterations
19 Installer not registered with a
Part P competent person self
certification scheme but
qualified to complete a BS7671 56.34 66.20 84.39 99.16 140.73 165.36 211.10
installation certificate and carry 66.00 79.00 99.00 119.00 182.00 218.00 218.00
out test, (15t fix inspection
notification required)
20 Installer not registered with a
Part P competent person self
certification scheme and not
qualified to complete a BS7671
installation and test certificate. 93.90 110.33 159.39 187.28 253.29 297.62 379.94
(An electrical contractor will be 110.00 132.00 158.00 189.00 294.00 353.00 353.00
appointed to inspect and test
as deemed necessary by the
Authority. This cost allows for 2
inspections only at a time to
suit the Authority. Missed
appointments or re-inspection
will incur additional charges)

Note:-

Should extra visits be found necessary then additional cost will be charged, should less inspections be required a refund will be
provided in instances where considered appropriate.

For schemes where the estimated cost exceeds £50,000 the charge is individually determined

Unless agreed otherwise schemes exceeding one years duration may be subject to additional charge.




TZ abed

Table C

Standard Charges for All Non Domestic Building Work

Plan Charge Inspection Charge Building Notice Charge Regularisation
Description of Work £ £ £ Charge
£
Net Charge Total Net Charge Total Net Charge Total Total
(Exc. VAT) Charge (Exc. VAT) Charge (Exc. VAT) Charge Charge
(Inc. VAT) (Inc. VAT) (Inc. VAT) (VAT Exempt)

Replacement windows and/or
doors to a non domestic 18.78 22.54 59.34 71.21 78.12 93.74 117.18
building up to a maximum of 44.00 53.00 99.00 119.00 157.00 189.00 189.00
20
Replacement windows and/or
doors to a non domestic 37.56 45.07 84.51 101.41 122.07 146.48 183.11
building more than 20 and up 55.00 66.00 128.00 154.00 202.00 242.00 242.00
to a maximum of 50
Renovation of a thermal
element (price is per element,
if more than 1 is carried out at
the same time, each
subsequent element is
reduced by 50%)
Estimated cost of work 56.34 67.61 59.34 71.21 115.68 138.82 173.52
Up to £50,000 66.00 79.00 70.00 84.00 149.00 179.00 179.00
Estimated cost of work 75.12 90.14 84.51 101.41 159.63 191.56 239.45
£50,001 - £100,000 88.00 106.00 99.00 119.00 206.00 247.00 247.00
Estimated cost of work 93.90 112.68 109.68 131.62 203.58 244.30 305.37
£100,001 - £500,000 110.00 132.00 128.00 154.00 262.00 315.00 315.00




Plan Charge Inspection Charge Building Notice Charge Regularisation

Description of Work £ £ £ Charge
£
Net Charge Total Net Charge Total Net Charge Total Total
(Exc. VAT) Charge (Exc. VAT) Charge (Exc. VAT) Charge Charge
(Inc. VAT) (Inc. VAT) (Inc. VAT) (VAT Exempt)

4 | Work not described elsewhere
including structural alterations
and installation of controlled

2z abed

fittings

£0 - £5,000 77.00 92.00 128.00 154.00 226.00 271.00 271.00

Estimated cost of work

£5,001 - £10,000 93.90 112.68 134.46 161.35 228.36 274.03 342.54
110.00 132.00 158.00 189.00 294.00 353.00 353.00

Estimated cost of work

£10,001 - £20,000 112.68 135.22 159.63 191.56 272.31 326.77 408.47
132.00 158.00 187.00 224.00 351.00 421.00 421.00

Estimated cost of work

£20,001 - £30,000 140.85 169.02 234.75 281.70 375.60 450.72 563.40
165.00 198.00 275.00 330.00 484.00 581.00 581.00

Estimated cost of work

£30,001 - £40,000 169.02 202.82 259.54 311.45 428.56 514.27 642.84
198.00 238.00 304.00 365.00 553.00 663.00 663.00

Estimated cost of work

£40,001 - £50,000 206.58 247.90 309.87 371.84 516.45 619.74 774.68

242.00 290.00 363.00 436.00 666.00 799.00 799.00

Note:- For schemes where the estimated cost exceeds £50,000 the charge is individually determined
Unless agreed otherwise schemes exceeding one years duration may be subject to additional charge.
Additional charge for the change of use of a building

The charge is £80 + VAT and all associated building work will be subject to the additional charges detailed above. This additional charge does not apply in
relation to a building used for residential purposes that is altered to create more or fewer dwellings.



£z abed

TABLE D

Demolition Application Charges

Oadby and Wigston Borough Council Building Control Department propose to introduce charges for the recovery of costs incurred whilst

carrying out its duty to control and administer the demolition of non-exempt buildings within the District.

Service Fee

Building Type Charge
Domestic £120.00
Commercial up to 130m? floor area £ 120.00
Commercial over 130m2 floor area £ 180.00

Note:

1. Sites containing multiple buildings or dwellings will incur an additional charge of £25.00 per non-exempt unit.

2. Exempt buildings are buildings that have a volume of less than 49.56 cubic metres will not require permission to be demolished.




Agenda ltem 7a

Development Control Thursday, 28 July

Committee 2016 Matter for Decision

Confirmation of The Borough Council of Oadby & Wigston (Land at

Title: 18 Newgate End, Wigston, Leicestershire, LE18 2GG)
Author: Henry Pearson (Arboricultural Officer)
1. Introduction

This report is to request the Committee to approve confirmation of The Borough
Council of Oadby & Wigston (Land at 18 Newgate End, Wigston, Leicestershire, LE18
2GG) Tree Preservation Order 2016°).

2. Recommendations

That The Borough Council of Oadby & Wigston (Land at 18 Newgate End, Wigston,
Leicestershire, LE18 2GG) Tree Preservation Order 2016’) is provisionally confirmed.

3. Information

This TPO has lapsed as of 05 July 2016. However it is being re-served and request
that the Committee provisionally confirm the TPO. During the 6 months, the
provisional TPO has been in force and there have been no objections. There is a very
strong possibility that there will not be any objections to the TPO being re-served. If
the Committee agrees the TPO can be confirmed, on the date of consultation expiry
(28-days after is served) the TPO can be in force as soon as possible. Should any
objections be raised during this period, the confirmation shall be raised at the next
meeting of this Committee.

Background Documents:-

None.

Email: henry.pearson@oadby-wigston.gov.uk Tel: (0116) 257 2697

Implications

Financial (CR)

No significant implications.

Legal (AC)

The TPO has lapsed once and needs to be confirmed following it
being re-served.

Risk (HP)

No significant implications.

Equalities (HP)

No significant implications.

Equality Assessment:-

[ ] Initial Screening [ ] Full Assessment [X] Not Applicable

Page 24




Town and Country Planning Act 1990

THE BOROUGH COUNCIL OF OADBY & WIGSTON (Land at 18 Newgate End,
Wigston, Leicestershire, LE18 2GG) TREE PRESERVATION ORDER 2016

The Borough Council of Oadby & Wigston, in exercise of the powers conferred on them by sections 198 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 hereby make the following Order:-

Citation

1. This Order may be cited as The Borough Council of Oadby and Wigston (Land at 18 Newgate End,
Wigston, Leicestershire, LE18 2GG) Tree Preservation Order 2016.

Interpretation

2. (1) In this Order “the authority” means the Borough Council of Oadby and Wigston unless the context
otherwise requires.

(2) In this Order any reference to a numbered section is a reference to the section so numbered in the

Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and any reference to a numbered regulation is a reference to

the regulation so numbered in the Town and Country Planning (Tree Preservation) (England)

Effect

Regulations 2012.

3. (1) Subject to article 5, this Order takes effect provisionally on the date on which it is made.
(2) Without prejudice to subsection (7) of section 198 (power to make tree preservation orders) or

Exceptions

subsection (1) of section 200 (tree preservation orders: Forestry Commissioners) and, subject to
article 4, no person shall-

(a) cut down;

(b) top;

(c) lop;

(d) uproot;

(e) wilfully damage; or
(f) wilfully destroy;

any tree to which an order relates, or shall cause or permit the carrying out of any of the activities in
sub-paragraphs (a) to (f) to such a tree, except with the written consent of the authority and, where
such consent is given subject to conditions, in accordance with those conditions.

4. (1) Nothing in article 3 shall prevent-

(a) the cutting down, topping, lopping or uprooting of a tree-

(i) which is dead;

(i) in compliance with any obligation imposed by or under an Act of Parliament or so far as may
be necessary for the prevention or abatement of a nuisance;

(iii} by or at the request of a statutory undertaker, where the land on which the tree is situated is
operational land of the statutory undertaker and the work is necessary-

(aa) in the interests of the safe operation of the undertaking;

(bb) in connection with the inspection, repair or renewal of any sewers, mains, pipes,
cables or other apparatus of the statutory undertaker;

(cc) to enable the statutory undertaker to carry out development permitted by or under the
Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995;

(iv) where that work is required to enable the implementation of an order made or confirmed
under paragraph 8(1) or paragraph 15(1) of Schedule 1 to the Highways Act 1980
(procedures for making or confirming certain orders or schemes);

(v) where that work is urgently necessary for national security purposes;

(vi) where that tree is cultivated for the production of fruit in the course of a business or trade
and such work is in the interests of that business or trade;

(vii) so far as such work is necessary to implement a planning permission (other than an outline
planning permission or, without prejudice to paragraph (iii)(cc), a permission granted by or
under the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995)
granted on an application under Part 1l of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (control
over development), or deemed to have been granted (whether for the purposes of that Part

or otherwise);

Pagg 25



(viii) by or at the request of the Environment Agency to enable the Agency to carry out
development permitted by or under the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995; or

(ix) by or at the request of a drainage body where that tree interferes, or is likely to interfere, with
the exercise of any of the functions of that body in relation to the maintenance, improvement
or construction of watercourses or of drainage works, and for this purpose “drainage body"
and “drainage” shall have the same meanings as in section 72(1) of the Land Drainage Act
1991 (interpretation);

(b) the removal of dead branches from a living tree;

(c) the cutting down, uprooting, topping or lopping of a tree, to the extent that such works are
urgently necessary to remove an immediate risk of serious harm, or to such other extent as
agreed in writing by the authority prior to the works being undertaken;

(d) the pruning, in accordance with good horticultural practice, of any tree cultivated for the
production of fruit; or

(e) without prejudice to sub-paragraph (aii), the felling or lopping of a tree or the cutting back of its
roots by or at the request of, or in accordance with a notice served by, a licence holder under
paragraph 9 of Schedule 4 to the Electricity Act 1989 (other powers etc of licence holders -
felling and lopping of trees etc).

(2) Where paragraphs (1)(a)(i) or (1)(c) apply, notice in writing of the proposed activities shall be given to
the authority-

(a) in the case of works urgently necessary to remove an immediate risk of serious harm, as soon
as practicable after the works become necessary; and

(b) in any other case at least five working days prior to the date on which the works are to be
commenced.

(3) In paragraph (1), “statutory undertaker” means any of the following-

(a) a person authorised by any enactment to carry on any railway, light railway, tramway, road
transport, water transport, canal, inland navigation, dock, harbour, pier or lighthouse
undertaking, or any undertaking for the supply of hydraulic power;

(b) a relevant airport operator (within the meaning of Part V of the Airports Act 1986 (status of
certain airport operators as statutory undertakers, etc));

(c) the holder of a licence under section 6 of the Electricity Act 1989 (licences authorising supply,
etc);

(d) agas transporter;

(e) an operator to whom the telecommunications code (set out in Schedule 2 to the
Telecommunications Act 1984) applies;

(f) a water or sewerage undertaker;
(g} the Civil Aviation Authority, a body acting on behalf of that authority or a person who holds a

licence under Chapter | of Part | of the Transport Act 2000 (air traffic services);
(h) a universal postal service provider in connection with the provision of a universal postal service.

Application to trees to be planted pursuant to a condition

In relation to any tree identified in the first column of the Schedule by the letter “C”, being a tree to be
planted pursuant to a condition imposed under paragraph (a) of section 197 (planning permission to
include appropriate provision for preservation and planting of trees), this Order takes effect as from the

time when the tree is planted.

Dated this 2 dayof - JAN 2016

The Common Seal of the Borough Council of Oadby and Wigston 2371516

was hereunto affixed in the presence of:-

Wioay

(Mayor)

v (Director of Services)

nge 26




CONFIRMATION OF ORDER

This Order was confirmed by the Oadby and Wigston Borough Council at its meeting of the Development
Control Committee without modification on the day of 2016

Minute Reference:

CONFIRMATION OF ORDER SUBJECT TO MODIFICATION

This Order was confirmed by the Oadby and Wigston Borough Council at its meeting of the Development
Control Committee, on the day of 2016, subject to the following

modifications:

Minute Reference:

DECISION NOT TO CONFIRM ORDER

A decision not to confirm this Order was taken by Oadby and Wigston Borough Council at its meeting of the
Development Control Committee on the day of 2016.

Minute Reference:

Page 27



SPECIFICATION OF TREES

Trees specified individually
{(encircled in red on the map)

SCHEDULE

Reference on map | Description Situation
Silver Birch Land at 18 Newgate End,
T2 Wigston, Leicestershire, LE18
2GG
Laburnam Land at 18 Newgate End,
T3 Wigston, Leicestershire, LE18
2GG
T5 Sycamore Land at 18 Newgate End,
Wigston, Leicestershire, LE18

2GG

P:fge 28



A )\ VAN

er 254 7016

ontraller of Her Malestys Statlonery Office © s
Sution or f\lvll proceedings. 100023293 (OWBC 2015), SCALE - 1:500 @ A4

D
ragez9




Agenda Item 7b

Development Control Thursday, 28 July

Committee 2016 Matter for Decision

Confirmation of The Borough Council of Oadby & Wigston (Land at

Title: Grand Hotel, Canal Street, South Wigston, Leicestershire, LE18 4PP)
Tree Preservation Order 2016

Author: Henry Pearson (Arboricultural Officer)

1. Introduction

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

This report is to request the Committee to approve confirmation of The Borough
Council of Oadby & Wigston (Land at Grand Hotel, Canal Street, South Wigston,
Leicestershire, LE18 4PP) Tree Preservation Order 2016

Recommendations

That The Borough Council of Oadby & Wigston (Land at Grand Hotel, Canal Street,
South Wigston, Leicestershire, LE18 4PP) Tree Preservation Order 2016 is confirmed.

Information

The TPO was created with an aim to preserve the 4 No. Lime trees at the Grand
Hotel, Canal Street, South Wigston, within the South Wigston Conservation Area. On
06 July 2016 an application was received to re-pollard the lime trees. The decision
was made that the full pollard of these trees would result in a significant loss of visual
amenity to the street scene. This, combined with previous applications to remove the
trees, highlighted the expediency of the need to protect the trees.

The aim of protecting these trees is not to stop all works to the trees, but to ensure
that the management of the trees is carried out with the interests of public amenity
taking a high priority. The proposed re-pollarding of the trees forms part of this
maintenance, however doing so on a staged programme (3-5 years) will maintain tree
cover for the street. Without a TPO the Council cannot impose such
recommendations.

The consultation date for this TPO expired on 14 July 2016
The Drawing Room (on behalf of the owner) - 06 July 2016 (Appended)

The owner is aware of the importance of the 4 No. Lime trees but also expresses the
importance of the brick wall, which runs alongside of the trees. The wall is described
as ‘very fine gault and red brick boundary wall’ in the south Wigston Conservation
Appraisal.

The trees are causing and will cause subsequent damage to the wall due to the root
structure sitting considerably higher than the pavement level. The owner wishes to put
on record their intention to seek recompense for any damage caused from the local
authority following the issuing of this TPO.

The Owner wishes to remove the trees and replace them with a row of semi-mature
trees, of a species more suitable for the setting, further away from the wall.

Page 30



3.4. Officer’'s Comments

Previous suggestions by the owner to remove the trees have been rejected. The trees
have a life expectancy greater than 40 years, with regular maintenance. Successive
planting around the site has already been undertaken. The Council is concerned that
the proposal to remove the trees and replant with a ‘species more suitable for the
setting’ will result in small ornamental trees being planted and the loss of amenity to
the area will be great.

The maintenance of the boundary wall is not of consequence to the TPO. The rooting
area of the trees is not likely to grow as they are mature and the wall has been present
for the entirety of their time in situ. The TPO does not prevent maintenance to the wall,
therefore if the wall was to fall into disrepair its maintenance is the responsibility of the
owner.

Background Documents:-

None.

Email: henry.pearson@oadby-wigston.gov.uk Tel: (0116) 257 2697

Implications

Financial (CR)

No significant implications.

Legal (AC)

If the TPO is not confirmed within 6 months of 16 July 2016 it will
lapse.

Risk (HP)

No significant implications.

Equalities (HP)

No significant implications.

Equality Assessment:-

[ ] Initial Screening [ ] Full Assessment [X] Not Applicable

Page 31



Town and Country Planning Act 1990

THE BOROUGH COUNCIL OF OADBY & WIGSTON (Land at Grand Hotel,
Canal Street, South Wigston, Leicestershire, LE18 4PP) TREE

PRESERVATION ORDER 2016

The Borough Council of Oadby & Wigston, in exercise of the powers conferred on them by sections 198 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 hereby make the following Order:-

Citation
1. This Order may be cited as The Borough Council of Oadby and Wigston (Land at Grand Hotel, Canal

Street, South Wigston, Leicestershire, LE18 4PP) Tree Preservation Order 2016.

Interpretation
2. (1) In this Order “the authority” means the Borough Council of Oadby and Wigston unless the context

otherwise requires.

(2) In this Order any reference to a numbered section is a reference to the section so numbered in the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and any reference to a numbered regulation is a reference to
the regulation so numbered in the Town and Country Planning (Tree Preservation) (England)

Regulations 2012.

Effect
3. (1) Subject to article 5, this Order takes effect provisionally on the date on which it is made.

(2) Without prejudice to subsection (7) of section 198 (power to make tree preservation orders) or
subsection (1) of section 200 (tree preservation orders: Forestry Commissioners) and, subject to
article 4, no person shall-

(a) cut down;

(b) top;

(c) lop;

(d) uproot;

(e) wilfully damage; or

(f) wilfully destroy;
any tree to which an order relates, or shall cause or permit the carrying out of any of the activities in
sub-paragraphs (a) to (f) to such a tree, except with the written consent of the authority and, where
such consent is given subject to conditions, in accordance with those conditions.

Exceptions
4. (1) Nothing in article 3 shall prevent-
(a) the cutting down, tapping, lopping or uprooting of a tree-

(i) which is dead;

(i} in compliance with any obligation imposed by or under an Act of Parliament or so far as may
be necessary for the prevention or abatement of a nuisance;

(iii) by or at the request of a statutory undertaker, where the land on which the tree is situated is
operational land of the statutory undertaker and the work is necessary-

(aa) in the interests of the safe operation of the undertaking;

(bb) in connection with the inspection, repair or renewal of any sewers, mains, pipes,
cables or other apparatus of the statutory undertaker;

(cc) to enable the statutory undertaker to carry out development permitted by or under the
Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995;

(iv) where that work is required to enable the implementation of an order made or confirmed
under paragraph 8(1) or paragraph 15(1) of Schedule 1 to the Highways Act 1980
(procedures for making or confirming certain orders or schemes);

(v) where that work is urgently necessary for national security purposes;

(vi) where that tree is cultivated for the production of fruit in the course of a business or trade
and such work is in the interests of that business or trade;

(vii) so far as such work is necessary to implement a planning permission (other than an outline
planning permission or, without prejudice to paragraph (iii)(cc), a permission granted by or
under the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995)
granted on an application under Part Il of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (control
over development), or deemed to have been granted (whether for the purposes of that Part
or otherwise);

Page 32



(vii) by or at the request of the Environment Agency to enable the Agency to carry out
development permitted by or under the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995; or

(ix) by or at the request of a drainage body where that tree interferes, or is likely to interfere, with
the exercise of any of the functions of that body in relation to the maintenance, improvement
or construction of watercourses or of drainage works, and for this purpose “drainage body”
and “drainage” shall have the same meanings as in section 72(1) of the Land Drainage Act
1991 (interpretation);

(b) the removal of dead branches from a living tree;

(c) the cutting down, uprooting, topping or lopping of a tree, to the extent that such works are
urgently necessary to remove an immediate risk of serious harm, or to such other extent as
agreed in writing by the authority prior to the works being undertaken;

(d) the pruning, in accordance with good horticultural practice, of any tree cultivated for the
production of fruit; or

(e) without prejudice to sub-paragraph (a)(ii), the felling or lopping of a tree or the cutting back of its
roots by or at the request of, or in accordance with a notice served by, a licence holder under
paragraph 9 of Schedule 4 to the Electricity Act 1989 (other powers etc of licence holders -
felling and lopping of trees eic).

(2) Where paragraphs (1)(a)(i) or (1)(c) apply, notice in writing of the proposed activities shall be given to
the authority-

(a) in the case of works urgently necessary to remove an immediate risk of serious harm, as soon
as practicable after the works become necessary; and

(b) in any other case at least five working days prior to the date on which the works are to be
commenced.

(3} In paragraph (1), “statutory undertaker” means any of the following-

(a) a person authorised by any enactment to carry on any railway, light railway, tramway, road
transport, water transport, canal, inland navigation, dock, harbour, pier or lighthouse
undertaking, or any undertaking for the supply of hydraulic power;

(b) a relevant airport operator (within the meaning of Part V of the Airports Act 1986 (status of
certain airport operators as statutory undertakers, etc));

(c) the holder of a licence under section 6 of the Electricity Act 1989 (licences authorising supply,
etc);

(d) agas transporter;

(e) an operator to whom the telecommunications code (set out in Schedule 2 to the
Telecommunications Act 1984) applies;

(f) a water or sewerage undertaker;

(g) the Civil Aviation Authority, a body acting on behalf of that authority or a person who hoids a
licence under Chapter | of Part | of the Transport Act 2000 (air traffic services);

(h) auniversal postal service provider in connection with the provision of a universal postal service.

Application to trees to be planted pursuant to a condition

5. In relation to any tree identified in the first column of the Schedule by the letter “C”, being a tree to be
planted pursuant to a condition imposed under paragraph (a) of section 197 (planning permission to
include appropriate provision for preservation and planting of trees), this Order takes effect as from the
time when the tree is planted.

Dated this {& dayof J,ae 2016

The Common Seal of the Borough Council of Oadby and Wigston
was hereunto affixed in the presence of:-

Bt
(Mayor)

'(_lﬂncgasvﬂ

Or2gcror oz sikvﬁ%ﬁé% Witeitd




(Head of Corporate Resources)
CONFIRMATION OF ORDER

This Order was confirmed by the Oadby and Wigston Borough Council at its meeting of the Development
Control Committee without madification on the day of 2016

Minute Reference:

CONFIRMATION OF ORDER SUBJECT TO MODIFICATION

This Order was confirmed by the Oadby and Wigston Borough Council at its meeting of the Development
Control Committee, on the day of 2016, subject to the following
modifications:

Minute Reference:

DECISION NOT TO CONFIRM ORDER

A decision not to confirm this Order was taken by Oadby and Wigston Borough Council at its meeting of the
Development Control Committee on the day of 2016.

Minute Reference:

P3ge 34



SCHEDULE

SPECIFICATION OF TREES

Trees specified individually
(encircled in red on the map)

Reference on map | Description

Situation

Four Tilia x europeaus (Lime Trees)
G1

Western boundary of Land at
Grand Hotel, Canal Street,
South Wigston, Leicestershire,
LE18 4PP

Pagk 35




THE BOROUGH COUNGIL OF OADBY AND WIGSTON g,
~ (land at Grand Hotel, Canal Street, South Wigston, @
Leicestershire, LE18 4PP) TREE PRESERVATION |

? ~ ORDER 2016 |
)\

Bil6it? «)
\

Il

Ordfance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survef on behalf ¢f the Controller of Her Majestys Stationery Office © Crown
tion infringes Crown copyrighl and may lead to prosecution of civil proes, ghiings. 4802329 (OWBLC 2¢16; SCALE -1:500 @ A4
age—o0




The Drawing Room (Architects) Ltd

Chartered Architects

130 Moat St. Wigston %ﬂ Leicester LE18 2GE
Tel: (0116) 288 0111 Fax: (0116) 288 0222

www.tdrarchitects.couk

Oadby & Wigston Borough Council : 6" July 2016
Council Offices '
Corporate Resources N Oug ref: 2542/04

132 Station Road. Wigston
Leicestershire LE18 2DR

For the attention of Mr Henry Pe‘:«i1's0h:Arb0ricultural Officer

Dear Sir,

Re: The Borough Council of Oadby & Wigston (TPOQ/311)-Land at Grand
Hotel, Canal Street, South Wigston, Leicestershire. LE18 4PP

Following our Client's receipt of your Tree Preservation Order dated 16" June 2016, we
write with the following comments.

Our Client is aware of the importance of the 4No. Lime Trees named in the Order and
has previously sought permission to fell the trees and replace them with a species more

suitable for their location.

It is our Clients concern that because the trees are healthy, due to their proximity to the
boundary wall of the property they currently are and will continue to cause damage to
the structure of the wall. This boundary wall is described in the South Wigston
Conservation Appraisal as a 'very fine gault and red brick boundary wall'.

Our Client is concerned that the decision to issue a TPO on the trees will cause him
considerable expense when damage is caused to the wall by the root structure of the
individual trees which sit considerably higher than the pavement level and wishes to put
on record his intention to seek recompense for any damage caused from the Local
Authority following the issuing of this TPO.

As you can appreciate from the sensitive work carried out to the Grand Hotel and it's
surroundings by our Client over the last few years, he is determined to preserve and
enhance this great local building and does not wish for further damage to be caused to
the structure of the boundary wall.

We accept that the trees form an impressive vista when viewed from Canal Street and
Timber Street but our Client would like you to look again at the proposal for replacing
them at a greater distance from the wall thereby alleviating any potential for wall

damage with examples of semi-mature trees of a species more suitable for this setting.

Registered Company No. 5811989 VAT Reg No 904 5718 26

Registered Office 21 Harborough Road Oadby Leicester LE2 4LE Director: Malcolm A Goodall
Page 37



These would still provide the screening of the garden area and also the factory behind
currently carried out by the canopies of the 4No. Lime trees.

Should you have any queries, please do not hesitate to contact us.

Yours faithfully

Al /e

Malcolm A Goodall (Dip Arch. RIBA)

cci-
Mr S Trueman,

Grand Hotel Apartment Ltd
Oakmore House

Leicester Road

Fleckney

Leicester LES 8BG

Registered Company No. 5811989 VAT Reg No 904 5718 26
Registered Office 21 Harborough Road Oadby LeiceFS)ter Ls}?él 4LE Director: Malcolm A Goodall
age



Agenda ltem 7c

Development Control Thursday, 28 July

Committee 2016 Matter for Decision

Confirmation of The Borough Council of Oadby & Wigston (Land at

Title: Rear of Saffron Road, South Wigston, Leicestershire LE18 4UN) Tree
Preservation Order 2016

Author: Henry Pearson (Arboricultural Officer)

1. Introduction

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

This report is request the Committee to approve confirmation of The Borough Council
of Oadby & Wigston (Land at Rear of Saffron Road, South Wigston, Leicestershire
LE18 4UN) Tree Preservation Order 2016

Recommendations

That Confirmation of The Borough Council of Oadby & Wigston (Land at Rear of
Saffron Road, South Wigston, Leicestershire LE18 4UN) Tree Preservation Order
2016 is confirmed.

Information

The TPO was created on the request of the resident and supported by the local Tree
Wardens. The 2 No Atlas Cedar trees in the rear of the garden are of good form and
form a structural part of the skyline view from the rear of the properties along Saffron
Road and adjacent roads.

The TPO was originally drafted in the later part of 2015 but was never served, due to
staffing changes at North West Leicestershire and workload at OWBC.

The aim of protecting these trees is not to stop all works to the trees, but to ensure
that trees are preserved long after the current owner of the property leaves. In respect
of plans for neighbours to erect out buildings in their gardens, these developments
would possibly have a negative effect on the rooting area of the trees leading to loss of
vigour and vitality.

The consultation date for this TPO expired on 27 July 2016
No letters of representation have been received at the time of writing this report.

Background Documents:-
None.

Email: henry.pearson@oadby-wigston.gov.uk Tel: (0116) 257 2697

Implications

Financial (CR) | No significant implications.

Legal (AC) If the TPO is not confirmed within 6 months of 29 July 2016 it will

lapse.

Risk (HP) No significant implications.

Page 39




Equalities (HP)

No significant implications.

Equality Assessment:-

[ ] Initial Screening [ ] Full Assessment

X Not Applicable

Page 40




Town and Country Planning Act 1990

THE BOROUGH COUNCIL OF OADBY & WIGSTON (Land at the Rear of
86 Saffron Road, South Wigston, Leicestershire, LE18 4UN) TREE

PRESERVATION ORDER 2016

The Borough Council of Oadby & Wigston, in exercise of the powers conferred on them by sections 198 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 hereby make the following Order:-

Citation
1. This Order may be cited as The Borough Council of Oadby and Wigston (Land at the rear of 86

Saffron Road, South Wigston, Leicestershire, LE18 4UN) Tree Preservation Order 2016.

Interpretation
2. (1) In this Order "the authority” means the Borough Council of Oadby and Wigston unless the context

otherwise requires.

{2) In this Order any reference to a numbered section is a reference to the section s0 numbered in the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and any reference to a numbered regulation is a reference to
the regulation so numbered in the Town and Country Planning (Tree Preservation) (England)

Regulations 2012.

Effect
3. (1) Subject to article 5, this Order takes effect provisionally on the date on which it is made.

(2) Without prejudice to subsection (7) of section 198 (power to make tree preservation orders) or
subsection {1) of section 200 (tree preservation orders: Foresi™8 ommissioners) and, subject to

article 4, no person shall- : 4
(a) cut down; Ehereby certify thaf thiffts a true eopy of the orlgin®

(b) top; R ) 2 9 JUN 2[]15

(c) lop;
(d) uproot; Legal Depgffmgf, Oadby and Wigston Borough Council,
(e) wilfully damage; or Station Rd=d, Wigston, Leicestershire LE18 2DR

(f) wilfully destroy;
any tree to which an order relates, or shall cause or permit the carrying out of any of the activities in

sub-paragraphs (a) to (f) to such a tree, except with the written consent of the authority and, where
such consent is given subject to conditions, in accordance with those conditions.

Exceptions
4. (1) Nothing in article 3 shall prevent-
(a) the cutting down, topping, lopping or uprooting of a tree-

(i) which is dead;

() in compliance with any obligation imposed by or under an Act of Parliament or sc far as may
be necessary for the prevention or abatement of a nuisance;

(iiy by or at the request of a statutory undertaker, where the land on which the tree is situated is
operational land of the statutory undertaker and the work is necessary-

(aa) in the interests of the safe operation of the undertaking;

(bb) in connection with the inspection, repair or renewal of any sewers, mains, pipes,
cables or other apparatus of the statutory undertaker:

(cc)  to enable the statutory undertaker to carry out development permitted by or under the
Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995;

(iv) where that work is required to enable the implementation of an order made or confirmed
under paragraph 8(1) or paragraph 15(1) of Schedule 1 to the Highways Act 1980
(procedures for making or confirming certain orders or schemes);

(v) where that work is urgently necessary for national security purposes;

(vi) where that tree is cultivated for the production of fruit in the course of a business or trade
and such work is in the interests of that business or trade;

(vii) so far as such work is necessary to implement a planning permission (other than an outline
planning permission or, without prejudice to paragraph (iii}(cc), a permission granted by or
under the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995)
granted on an application under Part 1] of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (control
over development), or deemed to have been granted (whether for the purposes of that Part

or otherwise);

Page 41
1



(viii) by or at the request of the Environment Agency to enable the Agency to carry out
development permitted by or under the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995; or

(ix) by or at the request of a drainage body where that tree interferes, or is likely to interfere, with
the exercise of any of the functions of that body in relation to the maintenance, improvement
or construction of watercourses or of drainage works, and for this purpose “drainage body”
and “drainage” shall have the same meanings as in section 72(1) of the Land Drainage Act
1991 (interpretation);

(b) the removal of dead branches from a living tree;

(c) the cutting down, uprooting, topping or lopping of a tree, to the extent that such works are
urgently necessary to remove an immediate risk of serious harm, or to such other extent as
agreed in writing by the authority prior to the works being undertaken;

(d) the pruning, in accordance with good horticultural practice, of any tree cultivated for the
production of fruit; or

(e) without prejudice to sub-paragraph (a)(ii), the felling or lopping of a tree or the cutting back of its
roots by or at the request of, or in accordance with a notice served by, a licence holder under
paragraph S of Schedule 4 to the Electricity Act 1989 (other powers etc of licence holders -
felling and lopping of trees etc).

(2) Where paragraphs (1)(a)(i) or (1)(c) apply, notice in writing of the proposed activities shall be given to
the authority-

(a) in the case of works urgently necessary to remove an immediate risk of serious harm, as soon
as practicable after the works become necessary; and

(b) in any other case at least five working days prior to the date on which the works are to be
commenced.

(3) In paragraph (1), "statutory undertaker” means any of the following-

(a) a person authorised by any enactment to carry on any railway, light railway, tramway, road
transport, water transport, canal, inland navigation, dock, harbour, pier or lighthouse
undertaking, or any undertaking for the supply of hydraulic power;

(b) a relevant airport operator (within the meaning of Part V of the Airports Act 1986 (status of
certain airport operators as statutory undertakers, etc));

(c) the holder of a licence under section 6 of the Electricity Act 1989 (licences authorising supply,
etc);

(d) agas transporter;

(e) an operator to whom the telecommunications code (set out in Schedule 2 to the
Telecommunications Act 1984) applies;

(f) a water or sewerage undertaker;

(g) the Civil Aviation Authority, a body acting on behalf of that authority or a person who holds a
licence under Chapter | of Part | of the Transport Act 2000 (air traffic services);

(h) a universal postal service provider in connection with the provision of a universal postal service.

Application to trees to be planted pursuant to a condition
5. In relation to any tree identified in the first column of the Schedule by the letter “C”, being a tree to be

planted pursuant to a condition imposed under paragraph (a) of section 197 (planning permission to
include appropriate provision for preservation and planting of trees), this Order takes effect as from the

time when the tree is planted.

Dated this 29 day of June 2016

The Common Seal of the Borough Council of Oadby and Wigston
was hereunto affixed in the presence of:-

R =A
(Mayor)
b F 2 :4 ﬂ

' (Director of Services)

Page 42



CONFIRMATION OF ORDER

This Order was confirmed by the Oadby and Wigston Borough Council at its meeting of the Development
Control Committee without modification on the day of 2016

Minute Reference:

CONFIRMATION OF ORDER SUBJECT TO MCDIFICATION

This Order was confirmed by the Oadby and Wigston Borough Council at its meeting of the Development

Control Committee, on the day of 2016, subject to the following
modifications:

Minute Reference:

DECISION NOT TO CONFIRM ORDER

A decision not to confirm this Order was taken by Oadby and Wigston Borough Council at its meeting of the
Development Cantrol Commitiee on the day of 2016.

Minute Reference:

Page 43
%



SCHEDULE

SPECIFICATION OF TREES

Trees specified individually
(encircled in red on the map)

Reference on map | Description

Situation

T1 Cedrus atlantica ‘glauca’

Northern side of rear
boundary of 86 Saffron
Road, South Wigston,
Leicestershire, Le18 4UN

T2 Cedrus atiantica ‘glauca’

Southern side of rear
boundary of 86 Saffron
Road, South Wigston,
Leicestershire, Le18 4UN

Page 44
4




| THE BOROUGH COUNCIL OF OADBY ANID WIGSTON

(land at the rear of 86 Saffron Road, South Wigston,
Leicestershire, LE18 4UN) TREE PRESERVATION

ORDER 2016 _

SCALE - 1: 500\@ A

N

=




Agenda ltem 8

Application Number Address

Report Items

1. 12/00435/CLE Beaumont Hall
Stoughton Drive South
Oadby
Leicester
Leicestershire
LE2 2NA

2. 12/00437/CLE Stamford Hall
Stoughton Drive South
Oadby
Leicester
Leicestershire
LE2 2NG

3. 16/00024/FUL 39 Long Street
Wigston
Leicestershire
LE18 2AJ

4. 16/00163/FUL 205 Wigston Road
Oadby
Leicestershire
LE2 5JF

5. 16/00223/TPO Hermitage Court
Honeywell Close
Oadby
Leicestershire
LE2 5QQ

Page 46



6.

7.

Application Number
16/00239/COU

16/00240/COU

Address

3 Victoria Street
Wigston
Leicestershire
LE18 1AJ

5 Victoria Street
Wigston
Leicestershire
LE18 1AJ

Page 47



Certificate of lawful use for halls of residence together

o
Q
o
c
o
S
[}
Q
c
e}
= o
5 ©
[} =
w [}
- 9 S
< £ ) D1 =
= )
= % |ew|R
c
c
o2, B853S
ES5222& S| @
mww.m.ma S| 8
mn O3 2| F
o~
S
& |
L -
=~ Q )
0 g |
To) £ LL
) o @)
S ) L
S z |9
I ©
- 13V )
—

LA100023293

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved Oadby & Wigston Borough Council

Published 2014

Page 48



Site and Location

The site is located within the Oadby Hill Top and Meadowcourt Conservation Area on the junctions
of Stoughton Drive South, Knighton Grange Road and Glebe Road and forms part of the wider
University of Leicester Oadby Campus.

The site comprises of the Beaumont Hall (main house), accommodation blocks, Rocklands House,
car parking and areas of open space.

Description of proposal

Beaumont Hall was purchased by the University of Leicester in 1947 and is part of the University of
Leicester’'s Oadby Campus. The premises provide 322 bedrooms and a range of other facilities
including a dining room, music practice room, T.V. room, common room and launderette.

The applicant asserts that Beaumont Hall has been used as a conference venue since at least 1988.
To that end, the applicant has provided the Council with the following kinds of information:-

(1) Conference booking records, known as the “Ledger Report” for the period 2002 to 2012.

(2) A “GANTT Chart” which indicates the time and duration of conferences that were held at
Beaumont Hall between 2002 and 2012.

In essence, this shows the following pattern of use:

Year Total no of Conferences Residential Conferences
2002 111 49

2003 117 37

2004 113 53

2005 116 37

2006 118 47

2007 107 [data Incomplete]
2008 113 33

2009 97 [data Incomplete]
2010 92 [data Incomplete]
2011 113 [data Incomplete]
2012 89 27

Some of the conference events are departmental “away days” and other small meetings rather
than conferences. However, in land use terms their character is clearly distinguishable from
the halls of residence use.

(3) Documentary evidence that corroborates the applicant’s claim that all of the conferences
mentioned in (1) and (2) actually took place.

(4) Two statutory declarations by Ms Frances Stone, who is the University of Leicester’s Director
of Residential Commercial Services.

(5) Supporting statements and appendices, which contain:-

(i) Asite plan

(i) A document entitled “Industrial Report, The Conference Office, University of Leicester” dated
14 October 1994. This is a “glossy” professionally produced “sales brochure” which advertised

the University’s halls as conference venues. Beaumont Hall is one of the halls advertised.

(iii) An extract from a document entitled: “Halls of Residence Accommodation”. It is dated 2003-
2004 and appears to have been written for students. It states:-

Page 49



(iv)

v)

(vi)

“Our halls of residence are used by vacation courses and conferences until Saturday 20th
September”

Another section entitled “Conferences” advises:-

“During the vacation periods bedrooms and other facilities are used to facilitate our very
important conference trade. Income from conferences helps to subsidise student residence
fees and we ask that you co-operate with any reasonable requests. This is the reason we ask
you to clear your room at vacations. Conferences are also held during term-time. Any such
events will be well advertised with plenty of notice given and will only use common areas not
bedrooms. There should only be minimal, if any disruption to the normal routine”.

A car park map which gives directions to the car parks at the Oadby Campus, including that at
Beaumont Hall.

An example of a “car park notice”. This is a sheet of A4 paper headed “Conference/ event
delegate”. The notices are placed on car dashboards.

A sample conference booking form, which indicates (amongst other things) the date of a
conference, the number of delegates, and the number of rooms and parking spaces required.

The applicant claims a certificate ought to be issued in respect of the whole of Beaumont Hall,
which it describes (correctly) as a single planning unit:-

Beaumont Hall (Main House)

Bar area

Dining room

Wedgwood Room

Music Room

TV Room

Junior Common Room

Games Room

Senior Common Room

Kitchen

Rooms 1,3,4,5,6,6A

New Court accommodation blocks

Old Court accommodation blocks

Rocklands House

Onsite Parking areas associated with each of these buildings
Areas of open space within the grounds of Beaumont Hall

Relevant Planning History
None Relevant

Consultations
OWBC (Legal Representative) — incorporated in the report

Oadby Civic_Society — Objects to the use of the University buildings in Oadby being used for

conferencing facilities because of the impact on the Conservation Area.

Page 50



Representations

Neighbours have been informed and a notice placed with seven letters of representation being
received at the time of writing this report (two from the same address). The date for the receipt of
comments expired on the 25 April 2014.

The reasons for objection can be summarised as follows: -

the University says all the areas of the relevant halls have been continuously used for
conferences for 10 years and this is no different to student use — There is plainly a difference
between use of land as a hall of residence and use of land for conferences;

the information submitted does not address the point that residential conferences do not occur
during term time;

the primary use of the Halls has always been student residences, which have been in full time
use as such during term time;

in term time only non-residential use is alleged, not any significant (let alone continuous)
residential use;

the University’s figures, as well as confirming no in-term residential conference use, show hardly
any in-term day conference use during much of the period relied on;

the booking process for student residential accommodation and conference residential
accommodation is not the same, as suggested, and are in reality very different not only in terms
of what is being booked but also in relation to arrangements;

there are also practical differences eg: the number of cars, students reside in the halls, are
member of the University and can be controlled by disciplinary action;

the fact that a specific meeting room is booked, according to the university means the whole site
is used for conference purposes, which is clearly untenable and continuous use of the whole site
for such purposes has plainly not been shown;

any in-term use of meeting rooms for conferences, even if continuous (which is not borne out by
the records) is entirely separate to the bedrooms used by students during term time. There has
been no use of the residential accommodation in term time on the University’s own evidence;
Conference use has been irregular not continuous and has not always been at its present level
when conferences take place they have on occasions caused major problems in terms of traffic,
parking, noise and disruption

the University has agreed with the Chairman of the Conservation Area Association to limit
delegate numbers in the area relating to Gilbert Murray conference centre;

if any certificate is granted it should not go beyond the nature, type and extent of conference use
that has taken place to date, which is bad enough, as well as effect being given to the
undertaking agreed in relation to the overall position as part of the concurrent application for
Gilbert Murray centre.

it is clear what has happened is that even where it has occurred, during a large part of the 10
year period at least conference use has simply been a secondary diminutive use (and essentially
just out of term);

were a certificate to be issued it would need to be limited so as not to cover conference use of
the residential accommodation in term time or more than the hours or level of any continuous
use to date.

it is quite impossible to construe the John Foster consent as consent for anything other than a
Hall of Residence

less concerned above applications because of the unilateral undertaking the University has
agreed with the Conservation Area Association to abide by (in connection with the Gilbert Murray
conference centre planning application), restricting the numbers across all of its Oadby sites
however certificates should only be issued where appropriate and any certificates be clearly
worded so as not to allow for any subsequent intensification of use or change in type of use.

the position is much less serious than it would otherwise be so long as use is limited as
previously , with the primary student use continuing and the Undertaking being given legal effect
to as promised.

Page 51



[1 conferences in the past have been intermittent but in recent tomes there have been on
occasions massive problems resulting in parking everywhere, disruption and a major blight on
the Conservation Area;

[ if there is any lawful use of substance, it is unfortunate that the Council has not been more
vigilant in preventing this from building up without a planning application.

Background
Members will recall that this Certificate of Lawful Development application was considered at the 23
July 2014 Development Control Committee meeting, where it was resolved to grant a certificate for

“a mixed use for student halls of residence, meeting rooms and conference use, such meeting room
and conference use being limited to a non-residential use except during University vacations.

as the application documents indicate that on the balance of probability the site has been used as a
mixed use for (i) student halls of residence and term time non-residential conference use; and (ii)
student halls of residence and non-residential and residential meeting rooms and conference use
during University vacations.

However, in issuing the formal paperwork an administrative error occurred and the decision was
judicially reviewed. Owing to the error, the Council consented to the quashing of the decision swiftly
and on the 19 February 2015 the Administrative Court quashed the decision. The exact quashing
decision states:-

“(1)The certificate of lawful use as issued in each case does not limit the lawful in-term time
conference use to non-residential use in accordance with the resolution of the planning
committee (nor refer to the use as a hall of residence as a student hall of residence).

(2)The certificate of lawful use as issued in each case does not limit the in-term time
conference use to non-residential use in accordance with the reason stated in it for the grant,
namely that a mixed use had been established for (i) student halls of residence and term time
non-residential conference use; and (i) student halls of residence and non-residential meeting
rooms and conference use during university vacations.

(3) It has been agreed the Defendant’s planning committee will reconsider afresh the issue of
certificates of lawful use having regard to the matters relied on in the Statement of Facts and
Grounds in these proceedings”

In accordance with that decision, the matter now falls back to this committee to re-determine the
application.

Consideration and Assessment

As this is an application for a certificate of lawful development the planning merits of what has been
occurring is not relevant to the consideration of the application. This is clear from the National
Planning Practice Guidance on Lawful Development Certificates.

“A local planning authority needs to consider whether, on the facts of the case and relevant planning
law, the specific matter is or would be lawful. Planning merits are not relevant at any stage in this
particular application or appeal process.”

The Lawful Development Certificate system provides the possibility of obtaining a statutory
document confirming that the use, operation or activity named in it is lawful for planning control
purposes.

To establish a right to a certificate of lawfulness of existing use or development it is necessary to

prove that on the balance of probabilities the use claimed has subsisted in breach of planning
control for a continuous period of at least 10 years, beginning with the date of the breach. The

Page 52



applicant bears the burden of proof. However, the applicant’s evidence does not need to be
corroborated by “independent evidence” to discharge the burden and meet the standard of proof that
is required. If the Council has no evidence of their own or from others to contradict or shed doubt on
an applicant’s evidence, then provided the latter is sufficiently precise and unambiguous a certificate
ought to be granted.

The statutory declaration of one Frances Stone provides a first-hand overview of the way in which
the applicant has used its Oadby estate for term time non-residential conferences and for residential
conferences during University vacations since 1988. However, it says very little that specific about
the use of Beaumont Hall and is therefore of limited evidential value. The “Halls of Residence
Accommodation document”, the car park notice and conference booking sheet are similarly non-
specific and of little evidential value, save to demonstrate that the Oadby Campus generally has
been used to provide conference accommodation during the term time and vacation period since at
least 2003. The car park map is of no probative value whatsoever.

Against that background, the “Industrial Report” indicates Beaumont Hall has been marketed as
conference accommodation since at least 1994 (although in 1994 there were only 230 bedrooms
available for delegates). The Ledger Report, GANTT Chart and “other documentary evidence” then
puts substantial “flesh on the bones” of the application. The GANTT chart in particular illustrates that
the hall has been used continuously since at least 2002 to host meetings and conferences during
term time and University vacations.

Although some of the spreadsheets that have been supplied do not disclose the precise number of
residential conferences in some years, it is absolutely clear that the meeting rooms and conference
use was substantial, regular and continuous between 2002 and 2012. The applicant’s evidence is
that the car park has been used throughout this period for to cater for meeting and conference
delegates. During term-time that is possible because students are generally not taught at the Oadby
Campus, and so leave in the morning as delegates arrive, and do not return until conferences are
finished.

The applicant has confirmed the use of the land that took place between 2002 and 2012 is
continuing. Viewed fairly and objectively, there is persuasive evidence that since at least 2002 the
whole planning unit has been used for a mixed use as student halls of residence and for a meeting
rooms and conference use. The mixed use extends to the use of the car park. Whilst the meeting
rooms and conference component of the mixed use includes residential meetings and conferences,
they have only taken place during University vacations. Any lawful residential conference and
meeting use is therefore limited to University vacations.

The committee will also note that the inclusion of the “meeting rooms” use is not a use that the
applicant sought to establish is lawful. Officers recommend that this use is specified in the
description because it is a distinctive component of the mixed use. If the large number of small
meetings that take place were to be supplemented by larger conferences that could, in principal
result in a material change of use. That would be a question of fact and degree, which would turn on
evidence of a distinct change in the character of the use of the land. Any such material change of
use would require planning permission.

The Planning and Environmental Implications

The Committee will note that the environmental implications of the claimed lawful use cannot be a
material consideration in the making of this essentially “judicial” decision. (Unlike the issues in an
ordinary application for planning permission).

A material effect of the claimed use is that some motorists, and on some but not all occasions
choose to park on local roads or road verges — rather than following any advice issued by the
University or conference organisers to park in designated off-street parking spaces. In the absence
of on-street parking controls such off-site car parking harms the character and appearance of the
Conservation Area, and may damage adjacent grass verges. Only those motorists who park on
grass verges rather than the carriageway are behaving in an arguably unlawful manner. An objector

Page 53



has supplied photographs of such behaviours. Officers have contacted LCC Highways, pointing out
that prosecutions might well amount to a significant revenue stream!

Conclusion

The meeting rooms and conference component has not been granted planning permission and has
therefore been carried on in breach of planning control. That use has subsisted for more than 10
years without significant interruption. No enforcement action may be taken against the breach, which
is now immune from planning control. Consequently, the applicant is entitled to a certificate under
s.191 of the Act.

Therefore, the Committee is recommended to grant a certificate of lawfulness under section 191 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 in respect of the land and buildings at Beaumont Hall
edged in red on the application plan for the following use:-

“A mixed use for student halls of residence, meeting rooms and conference use, such meeting
room and conference use being limited to a non-residential use except during University
vacations”.

Implications Statement

Health No Significant implications

Environment No Significant implications

Community Safety No Significant implications

Human Rights The rights of the applicant to develop his property has to be
balanced against the rights of neighbours.

Equal Opportunities

No Significant implications

Risk Assessment

No Significant implications

Value for Money

No Significant implications

Equalities No Significant implications
Legal No Significant implications

RECOMMENDATION: GRANTS

Reason for the grant of planning permission

1 The application documents indicate that on the balance of probability the site has been used
as a mixed use for (i) student halls of residence and term time non-residential conference
use; and (ii) student halls of residence and non-residential and residential meeting rooms
and conference use during University vacations.

Page 54



2. | 12/00437/CLE

Stamford Hall
Stoughton Drive South
Oadby
Leicester
Leicestershire
LE2 2NG

26 November 2012

Certificate of lawful use for halls of residence together
with day & residential conferences

CASE OFFICER

Tracey Carey

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved Oadby & Wigston Borough Council LA100023293

Published 2014

Page 55




Site and Location

The site is largely located off Stoughton Drive South, however Shirley House, which forms part of
the application site is accessed from Manor Road. The site is within the Oadby Hill Top and
Meadowecourt Conservation Area and forms part of the wider University of Leicester Oadby Campus.

The site comprises of Stamford Hall (main house), accommodation blocks, a dining block, Kent
House, Rosenfels, Shirley House, car parking and areas of open space.

Description of proposal

The original house at Stamford Hall was built in 1907. It opened as a halls of residence in 1965 and
is part of the University of Leicester's Oadby Campus. The premises provide 243 bedrooms and a
range of other facilities including a dining room, games room, lounge, seminar rooms, TV rooms and
a junior common room.

The applicant asserts that Stamford Hall has been used as a conference venue since at least 1988.
To that end, the applicant has provided the Council with the following kinds of information:-

(1) Conference booking records, known as the “Ledger Report” for the period 2002 to 2012.

(2) A “GANTT Chart” which indicates the time and duration of conferences that were held at
Stamford Hall between 2002 and 2012.

In essence, this shows the following pattern of use

Year Total no of conferences Residential conferences
2002 65 10
2003 64 16
2004 61 13
2005 92 31
2006 79 19
2007 128 54
2008 146 88
2009 228 173
2010 190 135
2011 274 238
2012 326 277

Some of the conference events are departmental “away days” and other internal conferences
held by departments of the University. Others appear to be relatively small meetings. However,
in land use terms their character is clearly distinguishable from the halls of residence use, and is
best described as a meeting and conference use.

(3) Documentary evidence that corroborates the applicant’s claim that all of the conferences
mentioned in (1) and (2) actually took place.

(4) Two statutory declarations by Ms Frances Stone, who is the University of Leicester’s Director of
Residential Commercial Services.

(5) Supporting statements and appendices, which contain:-
(i) A site plan

(i) A document entitled “Industrial Report, The Conference Office, University of Leicester” dated
14 October 1994. This is a “glossy” professionally produced “sales brochure” which

Page 56



advertised the University’s halls as conference venues. Stamford Hall is one of the halls
advertised.

(iii) An extract from a document entitled: “Halls of Residence Accommodation”. It is dated 2003-
2004 and appears to have been written for students. It states:-

“Our halls of residence are used by vacation courses and conferences until Saturday 20th
September”

Another section entitled “Conferences” advises:-

“During the vacation periods bedrooms and other facilities are used to facilitate our very
important conference trade. Income from conferences helps to subsidise student residence
fees and we ask that you co-operate with any reasonable requests. This is the reason we
ask you to clear your room at vacations. Conferences are also held during term-time. Any
such events will be well advertised with plenty of notice given and will only use common
areas not bedrooms. There should only be minimal, if any disruption to the normal routine”.

(iv) A car park map which gives directions to the car parks at the Oadby Campus, including that
at Stamford Hall.

(v) An example of a “car park notice”. This is a sheet of A4 paper headed “Conference/ event
delegate”. The notices are placed on car dashboards.

(vi) A sample conference booking form, which indicates (amongst other things) the date of a
conference, the number of delegates, and the number of rooms and parking spaces
required.

The applicant claims a certificate ought to be issued in respect of the whole of Beaumont
Hall, which it describes (correctly) as a single planning unit:-

[l Stamford Hall (Main House)

[l Thornton Room

[l Hollaton Room

[J  Ante Room

[1 Junior Common Room

[l Lounge

[l Games Room

[1 TV Room

[l Ladun accommodation blocks

"1 Stamford Hall Dining Room

[1  Kent House

[l Rosenfels

[l Shirley House

"1 Onsite Parking areas associated with each of these buildings
[1 Areas of open space within the grounds of Beaumont Hall

The statutory determination period for this application expired on the 21 January 2013 and it is
intended to issue a decision as soon as practicably possible after the committee meeting.

Relevant Planning History

92/0229/8M — Single storey rear extension - approved

93/0499/8P — Extension to rear car park — approved

95/0581/8P — Formation of new car park and increase in size of existing car park - approved

Page 57



Consultations
OWBC (Legal Representative) — incorporated in the report

Oadby Civic Society — Objects to the use of the University buildings in Oadby being used for

conferencing facilities because of the impact on the Conservation Area.

Representations

Neighbours have been informed and a notice placed with seven letters of representation being
received at the time of writing this report (two from the same address). The date for the receipt of
comments expired on the 25 April 2014.

The reasons for objection can be summarised as follows:-

the University says all the areas of the relevant halls have been continuously used for
conferences for 10 years and this is no different to student use — There is plainly a difference
between use of land as a hall of residence and use of land for conferences;

the information submitted does not address the point that residential conferences do not occur
during term time;

the primary use of the Halls has always been student residences, which have been in full time
use as such during term time;

in term time only non-residential use is alleged, not any significant (let alone continuous)
residential use;

the University’s figures, as well as confirming no in-term residential conference use, show hardly
any in-term day conference use during much of the period relied on;

during the whole of 2006, the ledger report shows only 6 in-term conferences of just 1 day each
at Stamford Hall — it is hard to see how this can be regarded as continuous conference use;

the booking process for student residential accommodation and conference residential
accommodation is not the same, as suggested, and are in reality very different not only in terms
of what is being booked but also in relation to arrangements;

there are also practical differences eg: the number of cars, students reside in the halls, are
member of the University and can be controlled by disciplinary action;

the fact that a specific meeting room is booked, according to the university means the whole site
is used for conference purposes, which is clearly untenable and continuous use of the whole site
for such purposes has plainly not been shown;

any in-term use of meeting rooms for conferences, even if continuous (which is not borne out by
the records) is entirely separate to the bedrooms used by students during term time. There has
been no use of the residential accommodation in term time on the University’s own evidence;
Conference use has been irregular not continuous and has not always been at its present level
when conferences take place they have on occasions caused major problems in terms of traffic,
parking, noise and disruption

the University has agreed with the Chairman of the Conservation Area Association to limit
delegate numbers in the area relating to Gilbert Murray conference centre;

if any certificate is granted it should not go beyond the nature, type and extent of conference use
that has taken place to date, which is bad enough, as well as effect being given to the
undertaking agreed in relation to the overall position as part of the concurrent application for
Gilbert Murray centre.

it is clear what has happened is that even where it has occurred, during a large part of the 10
year period at least conference use has simply been a secondary diminutive use (and essentially
just out of term);

were a certificate to be issued it would need to be limited so as not to cover conference use of
the residential accommodation in term time or more than the hours or level of any continuous
use to date.

it is quite impossible to construe the John Foster consent as consent for anything other than a
Hall of Residence

less concerned above applications because of the unilateral undertaking the University has
agreed with the Conservation Area Association to abide by (in connection with the Gilbert Murray

Page 58



conference centre planning application), restricting the numbers across all of its Oadby sites
however certificates should only be issued where appropriate and any certificates be clearly
worded so as not to allow for any subsequent intensification of use or change in type of use.

[ the position is much less serious than it would otherwise be so long as use is limited as
previously , with the primary student use continuing and the Undertaking being given legal effect
to as promised.

[1 conferences in the past have been intermittent but in recent tomes there have been on
occasions massive problems resulting in parking everywhere, disruption and a major blight on
the Conservation Area;

[ if there is any lawful use of substance, it is unfortunate that the Council has not been more
vigilant in preventing this from building up without a planning application.

Planning Considerations
Members will recall that this application was deferred from the 26 June committee meeting.

Following the committee meeting OWBC received a letter from the University in relation to this
application (and the other certificate of lawfulness applications).

In essence, the Applicant draws attention to the National Planning Practice Guidance on Lawful
Development Certificates which states (at paragraph 17¢-009-20140306) :-

“A local planning authority needs to consider whether, on the facts of the case and relevant planning
law, the specific matter is or would be lawful. Planning merits are not relevant at any stage in this
particular application or appeal process.”

The Lawful Development Certificate system provides the possibility of obtaining a statutory
document confirming that the use, operation or activity named in it is lawful for planning control
purposes.

To establish a right to a certificate of lawfulness of existing use or development it is necessary to
demonstrate on the balance of probabilities the use claimed has subsisted in breach of planning
control for a continuous period of at least 10 years, beginning with the date of the breach. The
applicant bears the burden of proof. However, the applicant’s evidence does not need to be
corroborated by “independent evidence” to discharge the burden and meet the standard of proof that
is required. If the Council has no evidence of their own or from others to contradict or shed doubt on
an applicant’s evidence, then provided the latter is sufficiently precise and unambiguous a certificate
ought to be granted.

Assessment

The statutory declaration of Frances Stone provides a first-hand overview of the way in which the
applicant has used its Oadby estate for term time non-residential conferences and for residential
conferences during University vacations since 1988.

However, it says very little that specific about the use of Stamford Hall and is therefore of limited
evidential value. The “Halls of Residence Accommodation document”, the car park notice and
conference booking sheet are similarly non-specific and of little evidential value, save to prove the
Oadby Campus generally has been used to provide conference accommodation during the term
time and vacation period since at least 2003. The car park map is of no probative value whatsoever.

Against that background, the “Industrial Report” indicates Stamford Hall has been marketed as
conference accommodation since at least 1994 (although in 1994 there were only 230 bedrooms
available for delegates). The Ledger Report, GANTT Chart and “other documentary evidence” then
puts substantial “flesh on the bones” of the application. The GANTT chart in particular illustrates that
the hall has been used continuously since at least 2002 to host meetings and conferences during
term time and University vacations.

Page 59



Although some of the spreadsheets that have been supplied do not disclose the precise number of
residential conferences in some years, it is absolutely clear that the meeting rooms and conference
use was substantial, regular and continuous between 2002 and 2012. The applicant’s evidence is
that the car park has been used throughout this period for to cater for meeting and conference
delegates. During term-time that is possible because students are generally not taught at the Oadby
Campus, and so leave in the morning as delegates arrive, and do not return until conferences are
finished.

The applicant has confirmed the use of the land that took place between 2002 and 2012 is
continuing. Viewed fairly and objectively, there is persuasive evidence that since at least 2002 the
whole planning unit has been used for a mixed use as student halls of residence and for a meeting
rooms and conference use. The mixed use extends to the use of the car park. Whilst the meeting
rooms and conference component of the mixed use includes residential meetings and conferences,
they have only taken place during University vacations. Any lawful residential conference and
meeting use is therefore limited to University vacations.

The Planning and Environmental Implications

The Committee will note that the environmental implications of the claimed lawful use cannot be a
material consideration in the making of this essentially “judicial” decision. (Unlike the issues in an
ordinary application for planning permission).

A material effect of the claimed use is that some motorists, and on some but not all occasions
choose to park on local roads or road verges — rather than following any advice issued by the
University or conference organisers to park in designated off-street parking spaces. In the absence
of on-street parking controls such off-site car parking harms the character and appearance of the
Conservation Area, and may damage adjacent grass verges. Only those motorists who park on
grass verges rather than the carriageway are behaving in an arguably unlawful manner. An objector
has supplied photographs of such behaviours. Officers have contacted LCC Highways, pointing out
that prosecutions might well amount to a significant revenue stream!

Intensification

A striking aspect of the conference use element of Stamford Hall is that since 2002 it has intensified
significantly. There may be a material change in the use of land as a result of intensification, the test
being whether the use has been intensified to such a degree that it can be said to have become a
materially different use compared with the original. In that context, officers consider the level of
conference use in 2002 was sufficiently high to change the character of the previous halls of
residence use to a mixed use. The subsequent intensification of the conference component whilst
striking as a set of statistics has not, as a matter of fact, displaced the halls of residence use. Nor
has there been a noticeable change in the character of the mixed use of the ground. This is probably
explained by the preponderance of smaller non-residential meetings rather than larger residential
conferences. Therefore, as a matter of fact and degree the planning unit still has a mixed use as
halls of residence and meeting rooms and conference use.

The committee will also note that the inclusion of the “meeting rooms” use is not a use that the
applicant sought to establish is lawful. Officers recommend that this use is specified in the
description because it is a distinctive component of the mixed use. If the large number of small
meetings that take place are supplanted by much larger conferences that might result in a change
use. The question of whether such a change of use had occurred would be a question of fact and
degree, which would turn on evidence of a distinct change in the character of the use of the land.
Planning permission would be required for any such change of use.

Conclusion

The meeting rooms and conference component has not been granted planning permission and has
therefore been carried on in breach of planning control. That use has subsisted for more than 10
years. No enforcement action may be taken against the breach, which is now immune from planning
control. Consequently, the applicant is entitled to a certificate for those uses under s.191 of the Act.

Page 60



Therefore, the Committee is recommended to grant a certificate of lawfulness under section 191 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 in respect of the land and buildings at Stamford Hall
edged in red on the application plan for the following use:-

“A mixed use for student halls of residence, meeting rooms and conference use, such
meeting room and conference use being limited to a non-residential use except during
University vacations.”

Implications Statement

Health No Significant implications
Environment No Significant implications
Community Safety No Significant implications
Human Rights The rights of the applicant to develop his property has to be balanced
against the rights of neighbours.
Equal Opportunities No Significant implications
Risk Assessment No Significant implications
Value for Money No Significant implications
Equalities No Significant implications
Legal No Significant implications

RECOMMENDATION: GRANTS

Reason for the grant of planning permission

1 The application documents indicate that on the balance of probability the site has been used
as a mixed use for (i) student halls of residence and term time non-residential conference
use; and (ii) student halls of residence and non-residential and residential meeting rooms
and conference use during University vacations.

Page 61




39 Long Street

Wigston

Leicestershire
LE18 2AJ

Existing building to be demolished and replaced by a

block of flats (two bedroom) and 8 terrace houses (3

bedroom).

Refuse and bike storage on site with 18

parking bays.

Tony Boswell

16/00024/FUL

1 February 2016

CASE OFFICER

3.

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved Oadby & Wigston Borough Council LA100023293

Published 2014

Page 62



Site and Location
The application site consists of a vacant working men’s club and an associated car park at 37-39
Long Street, Wigston. The site lies approximately 200 metres south-west of Wigston town centre.

The working men’s club on the site dates from the mid to late 19" Century. It is a predominantly red
brick structure with a slate roof, although its front elevation has been somewhat unsympathetically
finished in off-white render.

Surrounding land uses include a hairdressing salon and a dwelling to the north-west, a dental
practice and associated car park to the north, commercial units and residential properties to the
south and a place of worship to the east.

The site is enclosed by a variety of boundary treatments including a brick wall of approximately 2
metres in height to the north-west, metal railings approximately one metre in height to the north,
palisade fencing and a 1.5 metre high brick wall to the east and a wall approximately 2 metres in
height to the boundary with the dwellings to the south. The remainder of the southern boundary is
demarcated by the existing building on the site. There is no formal boundary treatment across the
Long Street frontage.

The site is relatively flat. It sits approximately one metre above the level of the dental surgery car
park to the north.

The site is accessed off Long Street. The access is shared with the place of worship to the east.

The site lies within The Lanes Conservation Area. The nearest listed buildings are the Grade | listed
All Saints Church approximately 170 metres to the south-west, the Grade Il listed Wigston Reform
Church approximately 75 metres to the north-east and the Grade Il listed Avenue House 20 metres
to the west.

There are no specific designations affecting the property identified within either the Saved Local
Plan or the Core Strategy.

Description of proposal
The application proposes the demolition of the working men’s club and the erection of a block of
flats and 8 terraced houses together with associated parking and storage facilities.

The proposed block of flats fronts Long Street. It is a three storey structure which contains a total of
12 two bedroom units. The building measures approximately 8.5 metres high to eaves and
approximately 13.5 metres high to ridge. It has a width of approximately 22.2 metres and a depth of
15 metres. The block of flats is sited off the boundary with the commercial units to the south of the
site, which will expose part of its north elevation.

The proposed terraced dwellings are two and a half storey three bedroom properties. They are
arranged in a staggered row towards the eastern boundary of the site, set back from Long Street to
the rear of the proposed block of flats across the frontage. The dwellings measure 5.5 metres high
to eaves and 8.8 metres high to ridge. They have a width of 4.8 metres and a depth of 9.8 metres.
The dwellings are served by private rear gardens which back on to the place of worship to the east
of the site.

An area of dedicated off-street parking is to be provided between the block of flats and the terraced
dwellings. It contains a total of 17 surface parking spaces arranged in two rows. A further two
parking spaces are to be provide within and in front of a single garage attached to and associated
with the dwelling on the northern end of the terrace.

The proposal also includes provision for the storage of bicycles and refuse. The storage building
measures 4.2 metres by 4.5 metres and has a ridge height of 3.1 metres.

Page 63



It is proposed to utilise the existing site access onto Long Street.

The statutory determination period for the applications expired on the 5" May 2016, and it is
intended to issue a decision as soon as practicably possible after the committee meeting.

Relevant Planning History
09/00196/CON : Conservation Area Consent for demolition of part of single storey rear projection —
Approved 18" August 2009

09/00197/FUL : Change of Use from Working Men’s Club (Use Class D2) to Public House and
Restaurant (Use Classes A3 and A4) plus first floor rear extension , new canopy to side and
alterations to external elevations — Approved 18" August 2009

Consultations

Historic England — Has identified the existing working men’s club as a building which makes a
positive contribution to the conservation area, the total loss of which will result in harm to the
significance of this designated heritage asset. The proposed block of flats creates an over-bearing
relationship to its immediate surroundings and its architectural treatment is not of any particular
guality and does not reflect the local distinctiveness of the conservation area. The proposal would
harm the significance of the conservation area, and the setting of nearby Grade | and Il listed
buildings. Historic England does not consider that the scheme is justified in heritage terms and does
not support the application.

Leicestershire County Council (Heritage Team) — Considers that existing building on the site
contributes to the significance of the conservation area and that its loss would harm the special
guality of the heritage asset. The replacement houses and flats are not of sufficient architectural
guality to justify the proposed development. The proposals do not promote or reinforce local
distinctiveness and are out of keeping with their surroundings.

Leicestershire County Council (Contributions Team) — Requests £24,065.72 towards education and
£600 towards libraries. The Civic Amenity Site at Oadby will be able to meet the needs of the
development and as such no contribution is requested.

Leicestershire County Council (Highways) - There is insufficient information submitted with this
application to enable a full, reasoned Highway Authority response to be given. Further details are
needed. A revised layout / parking drawing is required addressing issues of the possible impact of
the development on the road network, highway safety and capacity and the sustainability of the
development.

Representations
Neighbours have been informed and a notice placed with one letter of representation being received
at the time of writing this report.

The date for the receipt of comments expired on the 5" May 2016.

The reasons for objection can be summarised as follows: -

[l The access road is owned by the Trustees of the Kingdom Hall and the applicant has a right
of way over it. However, agreement would need to be reached in order for the applicant to
use the additional areas shown in the application.

[1 There is insufficient parking provision within the scheme.

[l The Kingdom Hall would be screened from view which could compromise security.
Enhanced security measures should be required.

[l Sufficient space should be left to maintain boundary fencing.

[1 A footpath should be provided in the applicant’s land alongside the access road.

[l The scheme should be amended to widen the access road to the Kingdom Hall.

Page 64



[l The bin store must be properly managed and fit for purpose.

Relevant Planning Policies
National Planning Policy Framework

In particular Sections 6, 7 and 12

Oadby & Wigston Core Strateqy

Core Strategy Policy 1: Spatial Strategy

Core Strategy Policy 4: Sustainable Transport & Accessibility
Core Strategy Policy 14: Design and Construction

Core Strategy Policy 15: Landscape and Character

Oadby and Wigston Local Plan
Landscape Proposal 1: Design of new development subject to criteria.

Supplementary Planning Document/Other Guidance
Conservation Areas Supplementary Planning Document
Residential Development Supplementary Planning Document

Planning Considerations
The main issues to consider in the determination of this application are as follows:

[l The principle of residential development in this location

"I The impact of the proposal upon the character and appearance of The Lanes Conservation
Area and the setting of nearby listed buildings

[l The impact of the proposal on neighbouring residential properties.

[l The impact of the proposal upon the safe and efficient use of the highway network

The principle of residential development in this location

One of the core principles of the National Planning Policy Framework is that planning should
proactively drive and support sustainable economic development to deliver the homes that the
country needs.

Paragraph 14 of the NPPF establishes a presumption in favour of sustainable development. It
explains that in the context of decision taking, this means approving proposals that accord with the
development plan without delay. Paragraph 49 of the NPPF reaffirms that housing applications
should be viewed in accordance with the presumption in favour of sustainable development.

Core Strategy Policy 1 prioritises development within the Leicester Principal Urban Area to
regenerate the centres of Oadby, Wigston, South Wigston and their associated communities.

The application proposes the erection of new residential properties upon previously developed land
within in the Leicester Principal Urban area. The site lies within an area containing a mixture of
residential and commercial properties. It is sustainably located within walking distance of a range of
services and facilities in the town centre. The proposal would contribute towards the Government’s
key aim of delivering new housing in a sustainable location as set out in Paragraph 17 of the NPPF.
In accordance with Core Strategy Policy 1, and the presumption in favour of sustainable
development set out in Paragraphs 14 and 49 of the NPPF, the broad principle of residential
development on the site is therefore considered acceptable.

The impact of the proposal upon the character and appearance of The Lanes Conservation Area
and the setting of nearby listed buildings

Policy 14 of the Core Strategy relates to design and construction. It requires that new development
respects local character and patterns of development, is sympathetic to its surroundings, and
contributes towards creating buildings and places that are attractive with their own distinct identity.

Page 65



Policy 15 of the Core Strategy requires new development to reflect the prevailing quality, character
and features of the landscape and townscape. It encourages the preservation and enhancement of
the character and appearance of the Borough’s Conservation Areas and listed buildings.

Paragraph 132 of the National Planning Policy Framework states “when considering the impact of a
proposed development on the significance of a designated heritage asset, great weight should be
given to the asset’s conservation. The more important the asset, the greater the weight should be.
Significance can be harmed or lost through alteration or destruction of the heritage asset or
development within its setting. As heritage assets are irreplaceable, any harm or loss should require
clear and convincing justification.”

Paragraph 134 “Where a development proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the
significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed against the public benefits
of the proposal, including securing its optimum viable use”.

The proposals involve the demolition of a substantial and historic building within The Lanes
Conservation area, which is a designated heritage asset. Paragraph 138 of the NPPF
acknowledges that not all aspects of a conservation area will necessarily contribute to its
significance. Whilst it is acknowledged that the frontage of the building has been unsympathetically
altered, which has somewhat eroded some of its traditional character, it is nonetheless considered
that it contributes to the character and appearance of the conservation area. The building is
specifically mentioned within the Conservation Area appraisal as being one of the oldest working
men’s clubs in the United Kingdom, which suggests significance to the social and historic
development of Wigston.

The demolition of the former working men’s club would expose part of the north elevation of the
adjoining commercial building. The finish of the north elevation of the commercial building is an
unknown quantity but it is not unreasonable to assume that it is not finished in facing brickwork given
that it was never intended to be visible. This wall lies outside of the applicants control and as such
opportunities for remediation are limited. It is considered that this issue can only satisfactorily be
resolved by altering the siting of the proposed building.

The demolition of the former working men’s club would therefore harm the character and
appearance of the conservation area.

Paragraph 16.15 of the Conservation Areas SPD states that in order to be acceptable, the design of
any new building in The Lanes Conservation Area will need to respect its character by being of an
appropriate mass and scale to avoid dominating the existing mainly two storey properties and/or to
maintain an appropriate juxtaposition of scales, and respect prevalent architectural detailing.

Surrounding buildings are predominantly two or two-and-a-half storeys in height, creating a
continuous and harmonious urban form. The proposed three storey block of flats is significantly
taller than the building which it is to replace, and significantly taller than neighbouring buildings. It
would therefore present a much more prominent feature in the streetscene, which would have an
overbearing relationship to its immediate surroundings by way of its height, scale and massing.

Paragraph 60 of the NPPF makes it clear that planning decisions should not attempt to impose
architectural styles or particular tastes and they should not stifle innovation, originality or initiative
through unsubstantiated requirements to conform to certain development forms or styles. However,
Paragraph 60 does state that it is proper to seek to promote or reinforce local distinctiveness.

The proposed flats and dwellings have a contemporary character and appearance, which in
accordance with Paragraph 60 of the NPPF is not considered an unacceptable design approach in
principle. However, it has not been convincingly demonstrated that the proposals promote or
reinforce local distinctiveness. The Design and Access Statement contains photographs of various

Page 66



local buildings, some of which contribute positively to the conservation area, but fails to describe
rigorously how the proposed design will match or improve the character and quality of the area. The
proposed flats and dwellings have numerous gables ‘to assist in creating interesting roof forms’.
The historic buildings illustrated in the Design and Access Statement typically use such features
sparingly, often to emphasise or add weight to a particular part of a property. The gables on the flats
are poorly related visually to the fenestration underneath, and the numerous projections on the
proposed houses result in a ‘saw tooth’ profile that is at odds with traditional residential terraces in
the area. The proposal fails promote or reinforce the distinctive character of Wigston.

Furthermore, the area between the two new buildings is almost entirely taken up by what is likely to
be a bland and unattractive car park, with the bin store incongruously sited in what should be the
gateway to the scheme. This weak treatment of the space between the buildings would exacerbate
the harm of the scheme upon the character and appearance of its surroundings.

The proposed block of flats and dwellings would therefore harm the character and appearance of
the conservation area. The proposals would be read as part of the setting of the Grade | listed All
Saints Church, the Grade Il listed Wigston Reform Church and the Grade Il listed Avenue House
and would cause some harm to these settings.

It is concluded that the character and appearance of the conservation area and the setting of nearby
listed buildings would be harmed both through the total loss of the existing building on the site as
well as the visual impact of its proposed replacement. The harm affects only part of the
Conservation Area and the setting of the listed buildings and as such it is considered that it is less
than substantial. It must be stressed that less than substantial harm does not necessarily equate to
acceptable harm. Paragraph 134 of the NPPF requires this harm to be weighed against the public
benefits of the scheme.

The proposals would be beneficial insofar as they would contribute towards delivering the new
homes that the country needs. In the short term the proposal would bring about the economic
benefits associated with new development including supporting the construction industry both
directly through

construction jobs on site and indirectly through the supply chain. In the medium to long term, the
occupants of the development could reasonably be expected to support local services and facilities.
These benefits are acknowledged, but on balance when assigning significant weight to the
conservation of the heritage asset as required by Paragraph 132 of the NPPF, they fail to outweigh
the harm to the character, appearance and setting of the heritage assets identified in the preceding
paragraphs of this report. There is therefore no clear and convincing justification for the proposals in
this instance.

The impact of the proposal on neighbouring residential properties

Section 4 of the Council’s Residential Development Supplementary Planning Document seeks to
ensure that new development is designed so that it does not unacceptably affect the amenities
enjoyed by the occupiers of neighbouring dwellings, particularly through loss of daylight or privacy.

The application site lies within a predominantly commercial area. However, there are neighbouring
residential properties at Willow Place to the south of the site and at 43 Long Street to the north.

The proposals are sufficiently distant from principal windows serving 43 Long Street to avoid
resulting in unacceptable loss of daylight or privacy.

The dwelling on Willow Place immediately south of the site has a blank side elevation. There are
windows on its rear elevation, and the proposed terrace encroaches into a 45 degree splay taken
from the centre of those windows. However, the terrace lies to the north of Willow Place and as
such the proposals will not result in an unacceptable loss of sunlight.

Page 67



Whilst the provision of new residential units on the site could lead to a slight increase in noise and
disturbance, this would remain commensurate with that reasonably expected from residential
properties, and would not be inherently incompatible with established residential uses in the area.

The impact of the proposal upon the safe and efficient use of the highway network
Policy 4 of the Core Strategy states that development should be designed to enhance the safety of
pedestrians and road users.

Paragraph 32 of the NPPF states that development should only be prevented or refused on
transport grounds where the residual cumulative impacts of development are severe.

The comments of the Highway Authority are noted. However, the key issue with regard to highway
implications is whether the proposals would result in a severe impact upon the highway network. In
assessing the impact of the proposals, consideration must be given to the established use of the
site. Although the former working men’s club is currently vacant, it could be brought back into use
without the need for a further application. This fallback position should be given considerable weight
in the determination of the application. According to the County Council’s standards, the established
use of the site has a higher parking requirement than that associated with the proposed dwellings.
As such it is reasonable to assume that the proposed dwellings would result in fewer trips to and
from the site. Given that the proposals utilise the same access as the former working men’s club, it
follows that the proposed residential properties would have a lesser impact upon the safe and
efficient use of the highway network than the established use of the site. In accordance with
Paragraph 32 of the NPPF resisting these proposals on the grounds of impact upon the safe and
efficient use of the highway network could not therefore be substantiated.

The County Council’s parking standards require a minimum provision of 1%z spaces per dwelling
with 2 bedrooms or less, and 2 spaces per 3 bedroom dwelling. This gives a total requirement of 34
parking spaces associated with the development. The proposals provide 18 spaces and as such fall
short of that requirement.

However, the application site is sustainably located. It is situated on the edge of the Wigston town
centre which contains a range of services and facilities. The site lies within comfortable walking
distance of these services and facilities. Furthermore, the site lies approximately 200 metres from a
bus stop served by numerous and frequent services. The location of the site is therefore inherently
sustainable.

It is considered that given the accessibility of the site to services, facilities and sustainable travel
options via non-car modes, the shortfall in parking provision would not lead to severe impacts and in
accordance with Paragraph 32 of the NPPF resisting these proposals on the grounds of insufficient
off-street parking provision could not therefore be substantiated.

Other Issues

The concerns raised regarding the security of adjacent properties and the maintenance of boundary
fencing do not constitute material planning considerations relevant to the outcome of this
application. The right of access to the neighbouring place of worship is maintained and the
proposed development does not justify widening it. A footpath could be secured by condition should
the scheme be approved.

Conclusion

The proposal involves new housing on of previously developed land which is sustainably located
within the Leicester Principal Urban Area. The principle of the development is therefore established
by Core Strategy Policy 1 and the National Planning Policy Framework.

The proposals would not unacceptably affect the amenities enjoyed by the occupiers of nearby
dwelling and neither would they prejudice the safe or efficient use of the highway network.

Page 68



However, the proposals would harm the significance, character and appearance of The Lanes
Conservation Area as well as the setting of the Grade | listed All Saints Church, the Grade 1l listed
Wigston Reform Church and the Grade Il listed Avenue House. The acknowledged benefits of the
scheme fail to outweigh this less than substantial harm and as such it has not been clearly and
convincingly justified.

Implications Statement

Health No Significant implications
Environment No Significant implications
Community Safety No Significant implications
Human Rights The rights of the applicant to develop his property have to be

balanced against the rights of neighbours.
Equal Opportunities | No Significant implications

Risk Assessment No Significant implications
Value for Money No Significant implications
Equalities No Significant implications
Legal No Significant implications

RECOMMENDATION: REFUSE

The Reason(s) for refusal are;

1 The proposal would result in the replacement of an historic building which contributes to the
character and appearence of The Lanes Conservation Area with new development which, by
by way of its height, scale and massing and many aspects of its design and layout, would
present an incongrous and unacceptably overbearing feature on both Long Street and the
area as a whole - to the detriment of the character and appearence of the Conservation Area
and setting of nearby Grade 1 and 2 Listed Buildings. The submitted proposals would
thereby result in a less than substantial harm to the character and appearence of The Lanes
Conservation Area, as well as to the setting of the setting of the Grade 1 Listed All Saints
Church, the Grade 2 Listed Wigston Reform Church and the Grade 2 Listed Avenue House.
The housing and other public benefits associated with the proposal fail to outweigh this
harm, and might well arise from an alternative and superior form of design and layout which
was more sympathetic to the character and appearence of the Conservation Area. This
being the case, the harm to the character and appearence of the Conservation Area and to
the setting of nearby listed buildings is not clearly and persuasively justified, contrary to
Section 12 of the National Planning Policy Framework (in particular paragraphs 132 and
134), Policies 14 and 15 of the Oadby and Wigston Core Strategy and the relevant
Conservation Areas Supplementary Planning Document.

Page 69



4. | 16/00163/FUL 205 Wigston Road
Oadby
Leicestershire
LE2 5JF
5 April 2016 Single and two storey extension.
CASE OFFICER Jon Imber
v
o
=

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved Oadby & Wigston Borough Council LA100023293
Published 2014

Page 70




Site and Location

The application site is a large detached property on the south east side of Wigston Road on
Oadby/Wigston boundary. The property is a dormer bungalow constructed of red brickwork with
white render, set back well from the road and behind the line of adjacent properties. The roof is
hipped, with a cone shaped turret to one side and a front “eyebrow” dormer with stained glass.
Later additions include a series of flat roofed dormers to the sides and rear.

Description of proposal

The application proposes the addition of a very large rear extension to the property. This would
protrude a maximum of some 13m in the centre of the plot. In part this would be single storey and in
part 2 storey under a flat roof no higher than the existing roof. There would also be extension and
alteration to the existing dormers.

Councillor Linda Broadley has requested that the application be brought to committee for
determination. The statutory determination period for this application expired on the 31° May 2016.

Relevant Planning History

15/00436/FUL — Single and two storey extensions including balconies — Refused by Committee on
the grounds that the proposal would result in continuous development of a one and a half storey
nature in close proximity to the boundary with n0.203 Wigston Road which would be overbearing on
the adjacent property and would result in a loss of amenity to residents of that property. This would
be further exacerbated by the land level differences between the two properties with the ground
level at n0.205 being 1.2m higher than the neighbour.

Consultations
Leicestershire County Council (Highways) — No comments

Representations
Neighbours have been informed and a site notice posted. Letters of representation have been
received from occupiers of the immediately adjacent dwellings.

The reasons for objection can be summarised as follows: -

[l Considers that the new proposal is even larger than that previously refused (Officer
comment: It is not as can be demonstrated on the overlaid plans)

[l The proposal extends the property, which is already set back from both adjoining properties,
by a considerable distance. The recommended depth of 8m has not been adhered to and
although some reduction has been made, at 9m deep, this is not enough to reduce the
impact on the neighbouring property. (Officer comment: This refers to the distance of
continuous depth along the boundary where the previous proposal measured 11 metres and
it was suggested that this be reduced to 8m. The current proposal shows a comparable
depth of 9m at eaves level, with the dormer having a depth of 6m within that. 8m was a
suggested length and is not prescriptive or anything other than guidance.)

[l The increase in size of the building, particularly with the roof being altered from hipped to
part gabled, would result in continuous 2 storey development in close proximity to no.203;
being overbearing and impacting on amenities (unspecified), which is further exacerbated by
the difference in ground levels between the properties. (Officer comment: The first floor
dormer is about 9m distant from the quarter point of the nbrs ground floor window, which the
code of practice guidance puts beyond the code. It is in excess of 3m from the common
boundary.)

[1 Errors in the application — red line plan in Design and Access statement shows the wrong
plot and photo is incorrectly labelled as rear. (Officer comment: The DAS does not form part
of the application per se and is not a requirement for householder applications in any event.)

" The cladding and colour scheme doesn't fit into the surrounding area and with the design
and character of the remaining house. (Officer comment: Materials can be conditioned.)

Page 71



[ Full length windows at first floor rear could be used as doors allowing flat roofs to be used as
balconies/ terraces. This would result in overlooking and a loss of privacy. (Officer comment:
Balcony/ terraces can be conditioned out.)

[1 45 degree code is being breached

[1 Difference in land levels — concern over how overbearing the proposal would be.

"1 Light to the garden at no.203 would be blocked. (Officer comment: The two storey rear
extension is at least 4.5m from the boundary; there are trees and shrubbery along the
boundary.)

"I Overbearing and restricting daylight and sunlight to no.203. (Officer comment: 45 degree
code objectively assesses this.)

[l Loss of privacy and overlooking to no.203. (Officer comment: On the flank elevation at first
floor level 2 windows are shown; one serves an en suite and the other a store. These can be
conditioned to be obscure glazed.)

[l Concern that the property may not be used as a family dwelling. (Officer comment: If a
material change of use takes place in the future then it would need to be assessed at that
time in accordance with national and local policy.)

Relevant Planning Policies
National Planning Policy Framework

Oadby & Wigston Core Strategy
Core Strategy Policy 14: Design and Construction

Oadby and Wigston Local Plan
Landscape Proposal 1: Design of new development subject to criteria.
Housing Proposal 17: Criteria for assessing the suitability of domestic extensions.

Supplementary Planning Document/Other Guidance
Residential Development Supplementary Planning Document

Planning Considerations
The main issues to consider in the determination of this application are as follows:

[l The impact of the proposal on the street scene
[l The impact of the proposal on neighbouring residential properties.

The impact of the proposal on the street scene

The existing property is set back from the highway by over 20 metres. As a result, the property is
set back behind the building line of other properties in the street. The design of the extension
continues the slope of the existing hipped roof rearwards on the south west elevation, and in effect,
uses the roof space for the first floor accommodation. To the north east the first floor element is set
in well from the flank wall so that the flat roofed element would not be readily visible from public
vantage points.

The proposal incorporates dormers onto both sides of the roof. These dormers would be rather
large and would be visible within the street scene, appearing as large flat roofed additions. One side
is a rearward enlargement of an existing dormer, while the other is set back behind the turret and
broadly in line with the new extension. The materials proposed for their cladding would include
concrete tiles to match the existing for the foremost dormer and cream render for the rearmost.

The single and two storey rear extensions would not be readily visible within the street scene and
their design and appearance is not therefore susceptible to public scrutiny. The proposal seeks to
use a modern design with grey powder coated window and door frames, grey tiling, and areas of
cream or grey render.

A condition would be included to require details of materials to be submitted and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority

Page 72



The flat roofed extensions would not be particularly visible from the sides, due to the roof design of
the south west elevation and to the degree of set back from the properties on either side. Likewise,
the proposed materials which would not be sympathetic to the materials used on the exterior of the
existing property, would not be visible from the public domain. The proposal is considered to be of
an acceptable design which would not have a detrimental impact on the character and appearance
of the street scene.

The impact of the proposal on neighbouring residential properties.

The proposal includes three distinct areas of single storey with flat roofs above which neighbours
fear may be used as terraces. These are above bedroom 3 to the east; above the existing garage to
the west and above the new kitchen dining room to the rear (south east). There would be no ready
means of access to the former two areas, while the latter area would be directly beyond bedroom 5,
separated by full length windows. A condition could be imposed to restrict access to and the use of
this area, to safeguard against use as a terrace would be likely to cause overlooking and loss of
privacy.

The previous application was refused by committee contrary to officer recommendation. This new
proposal has focussed on the north east side and its relationship with n0.203. The main difference
between the current and refused schemes is the extent of the first floor side dormer and roof. The
previously refused scheme proposed a dormer of about 6.7m wide, the surrounding gable ended
roof extending a further 0.4m or thereabouts; the new proposal has reduced the dormer to about
6.2m width, and the roof design has been amended to a hip, such that there is no further roof at high
level beyond the cheek of the dormer. However there would be a very minor roof “addition” at eaves
level to accommodate the lower slope of this hipped roof. The overall effect is a reduction in bulk of
this aspect.

The impact on residential amenity can be assessed by the 45 degree code, which involves drawing
a line at 45 degrees from the closest affected habitable room window at the neighbouring property.
When assessing the impact of two storey development, this line is taken from the quarter point of
the window. The neighbour has concerns that the 45 degree line is being breached. However,
having regard to a rear extension on the neighbouring property (203) not shown on the location and
block plans, | am satisfied that the correct line has been drawn. It appears that the line would be
clipped by the new hipped roof at eaves level only, although it should be noted that there is already
flat roof at above this height in this position, such that the very minor clipping as proposed would not
worsen the existing situation and that the distance of the infringement would be more than 8m
distant, the cut off distance for the 45 degree code.

The impact of the proposal on the amenity of the other neighbouring property at no.209 Wigston
Road is considered to be acceptable as the proposed extensions are a substantial distance from the
property, separated by both the applicant’s and neighbour’s garages. There would therefore be no
breach of the 45 degree code on this side and the extensions are not considered to be overbearing.
The first floor window facing no.209 could be conditioned to be obscure glazed and non-opening.

In summary, the proposed development is not considered to cause significant harm to the amenity
of neighbouring properties.

Conclusion

In summary, the proposed development is considered to secure further improvements as compared
to the refused scheme. The application is considered to be acceptable in terms of its impact on the
character and appearance of the street scene and the impact on the amenity of neighbouring
residential properties.

Page 73



Implications Statement

Health No Significant implications
Environment No Significant implications
Community Safety No Significant implications
Human Rights The rights of the applicant to develop his property has to be balanced
against the rights of neighbours.
Equal Opportunities No Significant implications
Risk Assessment No Significant implications
Value for Money No Significant implications
Equalities No Significant implications
Legal No Significant implications

RECOMMENDATION: GRANTS

Subiject to the following condition(s)

1

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from
the date of this permission.

Reason: To conform with Section 91 (1) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Prior to the commencement of development details of all materials to be used externally shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and the development
shall only be carried out using the agreed materials.

Reason: To safeguard the character and appearance of the building and its surroundings
and in accordance with the aims and objectives of the National Planning Policy Framework,
Core Strategy Policy 14, and Landscape Proposal 1 of the Oadby and Wigston Local Plan.

Prior to the commencement of development the colour of the proposed render (either self-
coloured or by means of a painted finish) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The render (including its agreed colour) shall be completed within
2 months of the substantial completion of the development.

Reason: To safeguard the character and appearance of the building and its surroundings
and in accordance with the aims and objectives of the National Planning Policy Framework,
Core Strategy Policy 14 and Landscape Proposal 1 of the Oadby and Wigston Local Plan.

The flat roof areas to the ground floor extensions and over the garage shall not be converted
or used as a terrace, balcony or other open amenity space.

Reason: It is considered that such a use would be detrimental to the amenities of adjoining
and neighbouring properties by reason of overlooking and loss of privacy contrary to
Landscape Proposal 1 and Housing Proposal 17 of the Oadby and Wigston Local Plan.

The first floor windows on either side elevation shall be fitted with obscure glass and shall be
of a non-opening design up to a minimum height of 1.7 metres above the internal finished
floor level. The windows shall be retained in that condition.

Reason: To safeguard the privacy of occupiers of the adjoining property and in accordance
with Landscape Proposal 1 and Housing Proposal 17 of the Oadby and Wigston Local Plan.

Unless otherwise first approved in writing (by means of a Non-material Amendment/Minor
Material Amendment or a new Planning Permission) by the Local Planning Authority the
development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans
and particulars listed in the schedule below.

Page 74




Reason: For the avoidance of doubt as to what is permitted by this permission and in the
interests of proper planning.

Page 75



16/00223/TPO

Hermitage Court
Honeywell Close
Oadby
Leicestershire
LE2 5QQ

4 May 2016

Fell 25 No. Leylandii Conifers (TPO 2009) and remove
pendulous branch from specimen Pine.

CASE OFFICER

Henry Pearson

o

N

‘n{\\\\\\

N

B

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved Oadby & Wigston Borough Council LA100023293

Published 2014

Page 76




Site and Location

Hermitage Court is situated on the corner of Wigston Road and Lawyers Lane. The property has
been developed into residential flats. The site lies within, Leicestershire County Council Oadby (The
Hermitage) Tree Preservation Order 1962 and London Road And Saint Peters Church Conservation
Area. The trees in question are on the northern side of the site and form a barrier between the
dwellings and Wigston Road.

Description of proposal

The proposal is to remove the 25 leylandii trees which make up the barrier between Hermitage
Court and Wigston Road and replant the 30m stretch with mature laurel with interspersed evergreen
shrubs and 2-3 specimen trees, as well as to remove one of the lower branches of another conifer.
The covering email sent with the application points out that hedges cannot be covered by a tree
preservation order.

Therefore the foremost proposal is to revoke the protection of the Tree Preservation Order:
Leicestershire County Council Oadby (The Hermitage) Tree Preservation Order 1962.

The proposal states that if the leylandii trees are causing damage to the block paved car park
making it difficult for residents to park.

The statutory determination period for this application expires on the 29.06.2016, and it is intended
to issue a decision as soon as practicably possible after the committee meeting.

Recommendations

It is my recommendation that the works be permitted under approval of an agreed replacement
schedule.

The hedgerow is not covered by the Tree Preservation Order and so no legal objection can be
raised.

However the council should strive to come to an agreement with Oadby Management Co Ltd. to
replace the hedge with a planting scheme that will provide similar if not greater amenity and its
associated benefits to the residents.

The removal of ‘pendulous’ limb from the neighbouring conifer is remedial tree management work
and should be permitted as it will increase the usable area and with the removal of the hedge will
have little impact on the area’s amenity.

Information

Relevant Planning History

10/00299/TPO - 30 percent Reduction in height of 28 No. Conifer trees (Hermitage Court, Honeywell
Close, Oadby) Tree Preservation Order 2009 & (Hermitage Court, Honeywell Close, Oadby) (No.2)
Tree Preservation Order 2010. Permitted 30.09.2016

11/00440/TPO - Reduction in height of 25No. Conifer trees (G1) by 20% (Hermitage Court,
Honeywell Close, Oadby) Tree Preservation Order 2009. Permitted 05.01.2012

13/00098/TPO - Reduction in width and height of 25No. Conifer trees (Hermitage Court, Honeywell
Close, Oadby) Tree Preservation Order 2009. Permitted 23.05.2013

Representations
Neighbours have been informed and a notice placed with 3 letters of representation (from 3
properties) being received at the time of writing this report.

The date for the receipt of comments expired on the 1 June 2016

The reasons for objection can be summarised as follows: -

. Loss of amenity value

. Loss of privacy

. Loss of shelter

. Bird droppings are not significant and not a nuisance
. Loss of sound barrier (Wigston Road)

Page 77



. Photos of car park in the application are misleading, residents can / and do still park with
ease.

The reasons for supporting the proposal can be summarised as follows: -

. Worries over liability for uneven kerbs and paving
. Bird droppings are a nuisance

. The trees are a danger

. Lack of sunlight

Planning Considerations

The impact of the proposal on the street scene

The removal of the hedge will remove a large section of green cover which forms a screen, from the
street scene. However the replacement with broadleaved evergreen (Laurel) hedgerow,
interspersed with 2-3 trees and herbaceous shrubs would replace some of the visual amenity lost.

The impact of the proposal on neighbouring residential properties

The Hedge as it stands forms and visual and sound barrier between the properties within Hermitage
Court and Wigston Road.

The removal of the hedge will increase sound levels to these properties, however not to an
unacceptable level.

Tree Preservation Order

The area is covered by Leicestershire County Council Oadby (The Hermitage) Tree Preservation
Order 1962.

The TPO is an area Order not covering specified trees, but rather the trees that were situated in the
area at the time the order was made.

The hedgerow in question is an amenity hedge and so therefore cannot be covered by the order.

Leicester Country Council is reviewing its TPO’s in the area and have produced a plan for the new
TPO. This proposed new order does not cover the hedge in question.

RECOMMENDATION: GRANTS

1 It is my recommendation that the works be permitted under approval of an agreed
replacement schedule.
The hedgerow is not covered by the Tree Preservation Order and so no legal objection can
be raised.

2 However the council should strive to come to an agreement with Oadby Management Co
Ltd. to replace the hedge with a planting scheme that will provide similar if not greater
amenity and its associated benefits to the residents.

The suggested Laurel hedge will not provide the am equal or greater level of amenity as the
leylandii hedge does. | would suggest that alternatives are looked into:-
e.g.

1. A high Beech (Fagus sylvatica) hedge(6-12ft), having both spring/summer and

autumn/winter canopy and colours.

2. A high pleached Lime (Tilia cordata / Tilia platyphyllos) tree line with seasonal under-

planting. Offering the high cover required with the added variation of the under-planting.

Both of the above suggestions are centred on native trees and fit the proposed ideas within

the draft Tree Strategy. These or similar options would have the added benefit of increased

biodiversity over the leylandii or laurel.

Page 78



6. | 16/00239/COU 3 Victoria Street
Wigston
Leicestershire
LE18 1AJ

12 May 2016 Retention of single storey extension to rear of dwelling.
Conversion of dwelling into 3 self contained flats. 2 x 1
bed apartments and 1 x 2 bed apartment.

CASE OFFICER Jon Imber

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved Oadby & Wigston Borough Council LA100023293
Published 2014

Page 79




Introduction

This application is one of two identical applications relating to neighbouring dwellings at 3 and 5
Victoria Street, Wigston. The application submitted in respect of the neighbouring property is also
on the agenda. The applications have been referred to the Planning Applications Committee at the
request of Clir Broadley.

Site and Location
3 Victoria Street is a two storey terraced dwelling which lies on a predominantly residential street on
the edge of Wigston town centre.

The dwelling is of red brick construction with a concrete tile roof. It has a character and appearance
typical of traditional Victorian terraces.

The property is separated from the adjoining dwelling by a brick boundary wall approximately two
metres in height. Other boundary treatments consist of a mixture of relatively tall brick walls and
adjoining outbuildings. The site is relatively flat.

Surrounding land uses include residential properties to the south and west, a public house to the
north and a print works and an MOT testing and service centre to the east. The site lies within a 50
metre walk of the town centre which contains a range of associated services and facilities.

The dwelling does not have any associated off-street parking provision.

The building is not listed and neither does it lie within or adjacent to a conservation area. There are
no specific designations affecting the property identified within either the Saved Local Plan or the
Core Strategy.

Description of proposal
The application proposes the retention of single storey rear extension, together with the conversion
of the property from a single dwellinghouse into three self-contained flats.

The rear extension to be retained measures approximately 11.6 metres deep by 3.45 metres wide.
It is mono-pitched with an eaves height of approximately 2.6 metres and a ridge height of
approximately 3.5 metres. The extension is constructed from red brickwork and concrete tiles
matching those of the existing dwelling.

The property would contain a single two bedroomed apartment on the first and second floors and
two single bedroomed apartments at ground floor level. The two bedroomed apartments on the
upper floors are to be accessed via the front doors to the existing dwelling, with the ground floor
apartments accessed via the central passageway between 3 and 5 Victoria Street.

A communal cycle storage and outdoor amenity area is to be provided at the rear of the property.
No off-street parking is proposed.

The statutory determination period for the application expired on the 7th July 2016, and it is intended
to issue a decision as soon as practicably possible after the committee meeting.

Relevant Planning History
13/00240/FUL.: Erection of two storey front extension, raising of height to provide second floor
accommodation and single storey rear extension — Approved 8" August 2013

16/00174/FUL: Conversion of a dwelling house to 3 self contained units (2 x 1 bed and 1 x 2 bed) —
Withdrawn 16™ May 2016

Consultations
The Planning Policy Team — the principle of the development is acceptable in planning policy terms

Page 80



Leicestershire County Council (Highways) — refers to its standing advice with particular reference to
the provision of ground floor windows not opening outwards.

Representations

Neighbours have been informed and a notice placed with 2 letters of representation (one from a
local resident and the other from Victoria Residents’ Association) being received at the time of
writing this report.

The date for the receipt of comments expired on the 7 March 2016.

The reasons for objection can be summarised as follows: -

'l The proposals would increase pressure for on street parking in an area where there is
already a shortfall. There are double yellow lines along the southern side of the street, the
street is used as free parking associated with the town centre and the car park at the east
end of the street is not for residents.

[ Disruption during construction.

Relevant Planning Policies
National Planning Policy Framework

Oadby & Wigston Core Strateqy

Core Strategy Policy 1: Spatial Strategy

Core Strategy Policy 4: Sustainable Transport & Accessibility

Core Strategy Policy 14: Design and Construction

Core Strategy Policy 15: Landscape and Character

Oadby and Wigston Local Plan

Landscape Proposal 1: Design of new development subject to criteria.

Housing Proposal 17: Criteria for assessing the suitability of domestic extensions.

Supplementary Planning Document/Other Guidance
Residential Development Supplementary Planning Document

Planning Considerations
The main issues to consider in the determination of this application are as follows:

[l The principle of converting the dwelling into flats

[l The impact of the proposal on the street scene

[l The impact of the proposal on neighbouring residential properties.

[l The impact of the proposal upon the safe and efficient use of the highway network

The principle of converting the dwelling into flats

One of the core principles of the National Planning Policy Framework is that planning should
proactively drive and support sustainable economic development to deliver the homes that the
country needs.

Paragraph 14 of the NPPF establishes a presumption in favour of sustainable development. It
explains that in the context of decision taking, this means approving proposals that accord with the
development plan without delay. Paragraph 49 of the NPPF reaffirms that housing applications
should be viewed in accordance with the presumption in favour of sustainable development.

Core Strategy Policy 1 prioritises development within the Leicester Principal Urban Area to
regenerate the centres of Oadby, Wigston, South Wigston and their associated communities.

Page 81



The application proposes the intensification of residential use within an existing building in the
Leicester Principal Urban area. The site lies within an area containing a mixture of residential and
commercial properties. It is sustainably located within walking distance of a range of services and
facilities in the town centre. The proposal would contribute towards the Government’'s key aim of
delivering new housing in a sustainable location as set out in Paragraph 17 of the NPPF. In
accordance with Core Strategy Policy 1, and the presumption in favour of sustainable development
set out in Paragraphs 14 and 49 of the NPPF, the broad principle of converting the dwelling to
provide more residential units is therefore considered acceptable.

The impact of the proposal on the street scene

Policy 14 of the Core Strategy relates to design and construction. It requires that new development
respects local character and patterns of development, is sympathetic to its surroundings, and
contributes towards creating buildings and places that are attractive with their own distinct identity.

Policy 15 of the Core Strategy requires new development to reflect the prevailing quality, character
and features of the landscape and townscape.

Policy LP1 of the Saved Local Plan requires that new development respects its landscape and
townscape context.

Policy H17 expands upon the provisions of Policy H1 with specific reference to residential
extensions and curtilage buildings. It requires extensions to be subservient to the existing property
and not result in unacceptable loss of space about dwellings.

The extension to be retained is sited to the rear of the dwelling. It is not readily visible from public
vantage points to the north, south or west. The side elevation of the extension is visible from
Leicester Road. However, it is viewed in the context of the intervening pub car park and garage
forecourt. It appears as a slightly taller section of the brick boundary wall that demarcates the
eastern boundary to the property, and is by no means a prominent feature within the streetscene.

The extension to be retained does not therefore detrimentally affect the character or appearance of
the streetscene and as such accord with Core Strategy Policies 14 and 15 and Saved Policies LP1
and H17 of the Oadby and Wigston Local Plan.

The impact of the proposal on neighbouring residential properties

Section 4 of the Council’'s Residential Development Supplementary Planning Document seeks to
ensure that new development is designed so that it does not unacceptably affect the amenities
enjoyed by the occupiers of neighbouring dwellings, particularly through loss of daylight or privacy.

The extension is sited on the boundary with commercial rather than residential properties. It does
not therefore cause loss of daylight or sunlight to neighbouring dwellings.

The existing brick boundary wall between 3 and 5 Victoria Street prevents overlooking between the
two properties.

Whilst the provision of additional units of accommodation on the site could lead to a slight increase
in noise and disturbance, this would remain commensurate with that reasonably expected from a
residential property, and would not be inherently incompatible with established residential uses in
the area.

The impact of the proposal upon the safe and efficient use of the highway network
Policy 4 of the Core Strategy states that development should be designed to enhance the safety of
pedestrians and road users.

Paragraph 32 of the NPPF states that development should only be prevented or refused on
transport grounds where the residual cumulative impacts of development are severe.

Page 82



The County Council’s parking standards require a minimum provision of 1 %2 spaces per dwelling
with 2 bedrooms or less. The proposals fall short of that requirement.

However, the application site is sustainably located. It is situated on the edge of the Wigston town
centre which contains a range of services and facilities. The site lies within comfortable walking
distance of these services and facilities. Furthermore, the site lies within 100 metres of a bus stop
served by numerous and frequent services. The location of the site is therefore inherently
sustainable.

Whilst the proposal may lead to a modest increase in on street parking, this is already prevalent in
the surrounding area. In this context it is not considered that a modest increase in street parking
would prejudice the safe or efficient use of this part of the highway network.

Whilst the impact of increased on-street parking upon highway safety is a material planning
consideration, increased competition for parking spaces is not. The Council cannot therefore attach
weight to these concerns.

It is considered that given the accessibility of the site to services, facilities and sustainable travel
options via non-car modes and the modest scale of the units proposed, the shortfall in parking
provision would not lead to severe impacts and in accordance with Paragraph 32 of the NPPF
resisting these proposals on the grounds of insufficient off-street parking provision could not
therefore be substantiated.

Conclusion

The proposal involves the intensification of use of an established residential property which is
sustainably located within the Leicester Principal Urban Area. The principle of the development is
therefore established by Core Strategy Policy 1 and the National Planning Policy Framework.

The proposals do not detrimentally affect the character or appearance of their surroundings, the
amenities enjoyed by the occupiers of neighbouring residential properties or the safe and efficient
use of the highway network.

The proposals therefore accord with Policies 4, 14 and 15 of the Core Strategy, Saved Policies LP1
and H17 of the Oadby and Wigston Local Plan, the Residential Development Supplementary
Planning Document and the National Planning Policy Framework.

Implications Statement

Health No Significant implications

Environment No Significant implications

Community Safety No Significant implications

Human Rights The rights of the applicant to develop his property has to be balanced

against the rights of neighbours.

Equal Opportunities

No Significant implications

Risk Assessment

No Significant implications

Value for Money

No Significant implications

Equalities

No Significant implications

Legal

No Significant implications

Page 83




RECOMMENDATION: GRANTS

Subiject to the following condition(s)

1

Prior to the first occupation of any of the flats hereby permitted, the cycle storage areas
shown on the approved plans shall be provided and shall thereafter be retained for the life of
the development.

Reason: In the interests of the sustainability of the development andto encourage alternative
transport in accordance with Core Strategy 4.

Unless otherwise first approved in writing (by means of a Non-material Amendment/Minor
Material Amendment or a new Planning Permission) by the Local Planning Authority the
development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans
and particulars listed in the schedule below.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt as to what is permitted by this permission and in the
interests of proper planning.

Page 84



7. | 16/00240/COU 5 Victoria Street
Wigston
Leicestershire
LE18 1AJ

12 May 2016 Conversion of dwelling into 3 self contained flats (2 x 1
bed apartments and 1 x 2 bed apartment) including
retention of single-storey rear extension.

CASE OFFICER Jon Imber

7\-} T
j £ " ; PH
: oy
ik
&
&
&
X _"
e o
I I

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved Oadby & Wigston Borough Council LA100023293
Published 2014

Page 85




Introduction

This application is one of two identical applications relating to neighbouring dwellings at 3 and 5
Victoria Street, Wigston. The application submitted in respect of the neighbouring property is also
on the agenda. The applications have been referred to the Planning Applications Committee at the
request of Clir Broadley.

Site and Location
5 Victoria Street is a two storey terraced dwelling which lies on a predominantly residential street on
the edge of Wigston town centre.

The dwelling is of red brick construction with a concrete tile roof. It has a character and appearance
typical of traditional Victorian terraces.

The property is separated from the adjoining dwelling by a brick boundary wall approximately two
metres in height. Other boundary treatments consist of a mixture of relatively tall brick walls, timber
fencing and adjoining outbuildings. The site is relatively flat.

Surrounding land uses include residential properties to the south, east and west and a public house
to the north. The site lies within a 50 metre walk of the town centre which contains a range of
associated services and facilities.

The dwelling does not have any associated off-street parking provision.

The building is not listed and neither does it lie within or adjacent to a conservation area. There are
no specific designations affecting the property identified within either the Saved Local Plan or the
Core Strategy.

Description of proposal
The application proposes the retention of single storey rear extension, together with the conversion
of the property from a single dwellinghouse into three self-contained flats.

The rear extension to be retained measures approximately 11.6 metres deep by 3.45 metres wide.
It is mono-pitched with an eaves height of approximately 2.6 metres and a ridge height of
approximately 3.5 metres. The extension is constructed from red brickwork and concrete tiles
matching those of the existing dwelling.

The property would contain a single two bedroomed apartment on the first and second floors and
two single bedroomed apartments at ground floor level. The two bedroomed apartments on the
upper floors are to be accessed via the front doors to the existing dwelling, with the ground floor
apartments accessed via the central passageway between 3 and 5 Victoria Street.

A communal cycle storage and outdoor amenity area is to be provided at the rear of the property.
No off-street parking is proposed.

The statutory determination period for the application expired on the 7th July 2016, and it is intended
to issue a decision as soon as practicably possible after the committee meeting.

Relevant Planning History
13/00231/FUL.: Erection of two storey front extension, raising of height to provide second floor
accommodation and single storey rear extension — Approved 8" August 2013

16/00176/FUL: Conversion of a dwelling house to 3 self contained units (2 x 1 bed and 1 x 2 bed) —
Withdrawn 16™ May 2016

Consultations
The Planning Policy Team — the principle of the development is acceptable in planning policy terms.

Page 86



Leicestershire County Council (Highways) — refers to its standing advice with particular reference to
the provision of ground floor windows not opening outwards.

Representations

Neighbours have been informed and a notice placed with 2 letters of representation (one from a
local resident and the other from Victoria Residents’ Association) being received at the time of
writing this report.

The date for the receipt of comments expired on the 7 March 2016.

The reasons for objection can be summarised as follows: -

'l The proposals would increase pressure for on street parking in an area where there is
already a shortfall. There are double yellow lines along the southern side of the street, the
street is used as free parking associated with the town centre and the car park at the east
end of the street is not for residents.

[ Disruption during construction.

Relevant Planning Policies

National Planning Policy Framework

Oadby & Wigston Core Strateqy

Core Strategy Policy 1.: Spatial Strategy

Core Strategy Policy 4: Sustainable Transport & Accessibility

Core Strategy Policy 14: Design and Construction

Core Strategy Policy 15: Landscape and Character

Oadby and Wigston Local Plan

Landscape Proposal 1: Design of new development subject to criteria.

Housing Proposal 17: Criteria for assessing the suitability of domestic extensions.

Supplementary Planning Document/Other Guidance
Residential Development Supplementary Planning Document

Planning Considerations
The main issues to consider in the determination of this application are as follows:

"I The principle of converting the dwelling into flats

[l The impact of the proposal on the street scene

[l The impact of the proposal on neighbouring residential properties.

"I The impact of the proposal upon the safe and efficient use of the highway network

The principle of converting the dwelling into flats

One of the core principles of the National Planning Policy Framework is that planning should
proactively drive and support sustainable economic development to deliver the homes that the
country needs.

Paragraph 14 of the NPPF establishes a presumption in favour of sustainable development. It
explains that in the context of decision taking, this means approving proposals that accord with the
development plan without delay. Paragraph 49 of the NPPF reaffirms that housing applications
should be viewed in accordance with the presumption in favour of sustainable development.

Core Strategy Policy 1 prioritises development within the Leicester Principal Urban Area to
regenerate the centres of Oadby, Wigston, South Wigston and their associated communities.

Page 87



The application proposes the intensification of residential use within an existing building in the
Leicester Principal Urban area. The site lies within an area containing a mixture of residential and
commercial properties. It is sustainably located within walking distance of a range of services and
facilities in the town centre. The proposal would contribute towards the Government’s key aim of
delivering new housing in a sustainable location as set out in Paragraph 17 of the NPPF. In
accordance with Core Strategy Policy 1, and the presumption in favour of sustainable development
set out in Paragraphs 14 and 49 of the NPPF, the broad principle of converting the dwelling to
provide more residential units is therefore considered acceptable.

The impact of the proposal on the street scene

Policy 14 of the Core Strategy relates to design and construction. It requires that new development
respects local character and patterns of development, is sympathetic to its surroundings, and
contributes towards creating buildings and places that are attractive with their own distinct identity.

Policy 15 of the Core Strategy requires new development to reflect the prevailing quality, character
and features of the landscape and townscape.

Policy LP1 of the Saved Local Plan requires that new development respects its landscape and
townscape context.

Policy H17 expands upon the provisions of Policy H1 with specific reference to residential
extensions and curtilage buildings. It requires extensions to be subservient to the existing property
and not result in unacceptable loss of space about dwellings.

The extension to be retained is sited to the rear of the dwelling. It is not readily visible from public
vantage points. The extension does not therefore detrimentally affect the character or appearance
of the streetscene and as such accord with Core Strategy Policies 14 and 15 and Saved Policies
LP1 and H17 of the Oadby and Wigston Local Plan.

The impact of the proposal on neighbouring residential properties

Section 4 of the Council’'s Residential Development Supplementary Planning Document seeks to
ensure that new development is designed so that it does not unacceptably affect the amenities
enjoyed by the occupiers of neighbouring dwellings, particularly through loss of daylight or privacy.

The extension is sited upon the boundary with the dwelling to the west. The Residential
Development SPD states that single storey extensions on, or within one metre of, side boundaries
should not extend for an effective length of more than 3.5 metres beyond the rear of the original
dwelling. The extension projects further than 3.5 metres. However, the site currently benefits from
planning permission for a larger rear extension. The impact of the extension to be retained upon the
neighbouring dwellings is no greater than that permitted, and refusal of this application on the
grounds of overbearing impact could not therefore be justified.

The existing brick boundary wall between 3 and 5 Victoria Street prevents overlooking between the
two properties.

Whilst the provision of additional units of accommodation on the site could lead to a slight increase
in noise and disturbance, this would remain commensurate with that reasonably expected from a
residential property, and would not be inherently incompatible with established residential uses in
the area.

The impact of the proposal upon the safe and efficient use of the highway network
Policy 4 of the Core Strategy states that development should be desighed to enhance the safety of
pedestrians and road users.

Paragraph 32 of the NPPF states that development should only be prevented or refused on
transport grounds where the residual cumulative impacts of development are severe.

Page 88



The County Council’s parking standards require a minimum provision of 1 %2 spaces per dwelling
with 2 bedrooms or less. The proposals fall short of that requirement.

However, the application site is sustainably located. It is situated on the edge of the Wigston town
centre which contains a range of services and facilities. The site lies within comfortable walking
distance of these services and facilities. Furthermore, the site lies within 100 metres of a bus stop
served by numerous and frequent services. The location of the site is therefore inherently
sustainable.

Whilst the proposal may lead to a modest increase in on street parking, this is already prevalent in
the surrounding area. In this context it is not considered that a modest increase in street parking
would prejudice the safe or efficient use of this part of the highway network.

Whilst the impact of increased on-street parking upon highway safety is a material planning
consideration, increased competition for parking spaces is not. The Council cannot therefore attach
weight to these concerns.

It is considered that given the accessibility of the site to services, facilities and sustainable travel
options via non-car modes and the modest scale of the units proposed, the shortfall in parking
provision would not lead to severe impacts and in accordance with Paragraph 32 of the NPPF
resisting these proposals on the grounds of insufficient off-street parking provision could not
therefore be substantiated.

Conclusion

The proposal involves the intensification of use of an established residential property which is
sustainably located within the Leicester Principal Urban Area. The principle of the development is
therefore established by Core Strategy Policy 1 and the National Planning Policy Framework.

The proposals do not detrimentally affect the character or appearance of their surroundings, the
amenities enjoyed by the occupiers of neighbouring residential properties or the safe and efficient
use of the highway network.

The proposals therefore accord with Policies 4, 14 and 15 of the Core Strategy, Saved Policies LP1

and H17 of the Oadby and Wigston Local Plan, the Residential Development Supplementary
Planning Document and the National Planning Policy Framework.

Page 89



Implications Statement

Health No Significant implications
Environment No Significant implications
Community Safety No Significant implications
Human Rights The rights of the applicant to develop his property has to be balanced
against the rights of neighbours.
Equal Opportunities No Significant implications
Risk Assessment No Significant implications
Value for Money No Significant implications
Equalities No Significant implications
Legal No Significant implications

RECOMMENDATION: GRANTS

Subiject to the following condition(s)

1

Prior to the first occupation of any of the flats hereby permitted, the cycle storage areas
shown on the approved plans shall be provided and thereafter retained for the life of the
development.

Reason: In the interests of sustainability of the development and to encourage alternative
transport in accordance with Core strategy 4.

Unless otherwise first approved in writing (by means of a Non-material Amendment/Minor
Material Amendment or a new Planning Permission) by the Local Planning Authority the
development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans
and particulars listed in the schedule below.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt as to what is permitted by this permission and in the
interests of proper planning.

Page 90




BACKGROUND PAPERS

12/00435/CLE

12/00437/CLE

16/00024/FUL

16/00163/FUL

16/00223/TPO

16/00239/COU

16/00240/COU

Page 91



	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the Previous Meeting held on 12 May 2016
	Minutes

	6 Review of Scale of Fees and Charges (Building Control)
	Appendix 1 - Table A - Review of Scale of Fees and Charges (Building Control)
	Appendix 2 - Table B - Review of Scale of Fees and Charges (Building Control)
	Appendix 3 - Table C - Review of Scale of Fees and Charges (Building Control)
	Appendix 4 - Table D - Review of Scale of Fees and Charges (Building Control)

	7a Land at 18 Newgate End, Wigston, Leicestershire, LE18 2GG
	Appendix 1 - TPO - Land at 18 Newgate End, Wigston, Leicestershire, LE18 2GG

	7b Land at Grand Hotel, Canal Street, South Wigston, Leicestershire, LE18 4PP
	Appendix 1 - TPO - Land at Grand Hotel, Canal Street, South Wigston, Leicestershire, LE18 4PP
	Appendix 2 - TPO - Land at Grand Hotel, Canal Street, South Wigston, Leicestershire, LE18 4PP

	7c Land at Rear of Saffron Road, South Wigston, Leicestershire, LE18 4UN
	Appendix 1 - TPO - Land at Rear of Saffron Road, South Wigston, Leicestershire, LE18 4UN

	8 Report of the Planning Control Manager

